
Audit and Accounts Committee 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Audit and Accounts Committee to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 22 January 2020

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Committee Room 1, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

PRIVATE MEETING FOR COMMITTEE MEMBERS WITH INTERNAL AUDIT

TRAINING SESSION:

AGENDA

1  Private meeting for the committee members with the Internal 
Auditors 

2  TRAINING SESSION: Protecting those at risk from financial fraud 
- Simon Bleckly 

3  Apologies for Absence 

4  Agenda Items 

The Committee is asked to consider whether it agrees to the inclusion 
of the items  listed in Parts 1 and 2 of the agenda.

5  Declarations of Interest 

6  Appointment/Re-appointment of Co-opted Members of the 
Committee 

7  Committee Attendance 

8  Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting 
held on 23 October 2019.

(Pages 1 - 6)

Public Document Pack



9  Matters Arising 

10  URGENT BUSINESS - PART 1 

10a Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee - Miranda 
Carruthers-Watt 

How the committee adds value to the council.

10b An Update on the Strategic Risk Register 2019/20 - Emma Reid (Pages 7 - 18)

10c The Annual Audit Letter 2019/20 - Mazars (Pages 19 - 34)

10d External Audit Update - Mazars 

Audit and Accounts Committee Update.

(Pages 35 - 44)

10e Housing Benefit Subsidy Report - KPMGm - to follow 

10f Counter Fraud Bribery and Corruption Update - Simon Bleckly (Pages 45 - 56)

10g Urban Vision Transition - Shoaib Mohammad (Pages 57 - 62)

11  Internal Audit Progress Report (Pages 63 - 76)

12  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

The officers consider that the following items contain exempt 
information as provided for in the Local Government Access to 
Information Act and that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

Members are recommended to agree the necessary 
resolutions excluding the public from the meeting during consideration 
of this item. At the time this agenda is published no representations 
have been that this part of the meeting should be open to the public.

13  Internal Audit Investigations Progress Report (April 2019 to 
January 2020) 

(Pages 77 - 86)

14  URGENT BUSINESS - PART 2 

15  Date of the Next Meeting 

 The next meeting of the Audit and Accounts Meeting had been 
previously agreed as Wednesday 25 March 2020 at 2pm in 
Committee Room 1.

 Future meeting dates are proposed as follows:
o Wednesday 24 June 2020 at 2pm in The Salford Suite
o Wednesday 22 July 2020 at 2pm in Committee Room 1



o Wednesday 21 October 2020 at 1.30pm in Committee Room 4
o Wednesday 20 January 2021 at 1.30pm in Committee Room 1
o Wednesday 24 March 2021 at 2pm in Committee Room 1

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811
Liz Wright E-Mail: liz.wright@salford.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Salford City Council - Audit & Accounts Committee 1

AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE

Date: 23 October 2019
Meeting commenced: 2:00pm.
Meeting ended: 2:35pm

PRESENT: Councillor Robin Garrido:  In the Chair
Councillors:  Joshua Brooks, David Jolley, Roger Jones, John Walsh

Vittoria Bugana (Co-opted Member)

INVITEE: Councillor Bill Hinds (Lead Member for Finance and Support Services)

PUBLIC: A member of the public.

OFFICERS: Miranda Carruthers-Watt – City Solicitor
Jean Gleave - Head of Internal Audit
Joanne Hardman - Chief Finance Officer 
Jay Horeesorun – Principal Auditor – Internal Audit
Karen Murray – Director, Mazars
David Smith – Internal Audit Manager
Liz Wright - Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor M Pevitt, Councillor 
P Connor and Mr C Whittingham (Mazars).

2. AGENDA ITEMS 
 The committee were asked to consider whether it agrees to Parts 1 and 2 of 

the agenda.
 The Chair reported that he had received a briefing note from Bev Hinks 

updating the members about a proposal to change the reporting on the city 
council’s Strategic Risk Register.  

 The committee agreed that all items would be considered under Part 1 on the 
agenda and that the briefing note Reporting of Salford City Council Strategic 
Risk Register be considered as an additional urgent item of business at the 
end of the agenda.

RESOLVED: THAT all items were to be considered under Part 1 of the agenda 
and that the briefing note Reporting of Salford City Council Strategic Risk 
Register be considered as an additional urgent item of business at the end of the 
agenda.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

4. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:  THAT the minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2019 were 
approved as a correct record. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 8



Salford City Council - Audit & Accounts Committee 2

5. MATTERS ARISING 
There were no matters arising.

6. URGENT BUSINESS  - PART 1

6a. CIPFA Statement 
 The Committee reviewed the statement and it generated discussion around 

the role of the committee and review of risk areas.
 Congratulations were given to Jean Gleave for being awarded the CIPFA 

Barbara Kay Regional Award Lifetime Achievement for commitment to work 
for CIPFA in the region and as part of the CIPFA internal audit special interest 
group.  

 The Committee commended Internal Audit for being included in the CIPFA 
document, Leading Internal Audit in the Public Sector, as an example of best 
practice.  It was reported that other councils were contacting the audit team for 
advice and best practice guidance.

 The statement had last been updated in 2010 and it was highlighted that a key 
change was the focus given to the importance of audit as a responsibility of 
the whole organisation.

 The Chair highlighted the role of the committee to monitor any new ventures 
that may highlight a potential financial risk and added that he proposed that 
the Urban Vision transition back to the city council should be an agenda item 
for the meeting in January.  The committee agreed this and requested that an 
update around risks attached to the Urban Vision transition should be a report 
for the January meeting.

 The Committee noted the updated Statement and noted the support required 
to enable internal auditors to meet the required standards.

RESOLVED:  THAT the committee
1. agreed that the Urban Vision transition to be on the agenda for the 22 January 

meeting and requested an update on the risks attached to the UV transition for 
that meeting;

2. congratulated Jean Gleave for being awarded the CIPFA Barbara Kay 
Regional Award Lifetime Achievement for commitment to work for CIPFA in 
the region and as part of the CIPFA internal audit special interest group;  

3. commended Internal Audit for being included in the CIPFA document Leading 
Internal Audit in the Public Sector as an example of best practice.

4. members noted the updated Statement and noted the support required to 
enable internal auditors to meet the required standards.

6b. External Audit – Audit Committee Updates
Karen Murray (Mazars) gave an overview of the report, which included the 
following.
 The 2018/19 audit had been formally closed and the Annual Audit Letter would 

be presented at the next meeting.
 The process for the 2019/20 audit had just commenced and the committee 

would be updated on its progress at the future meetings.
 The national publications for interest to the committee in their role were 

highlighted.  

Page 2



Salford City Council - Audit & Accounts Committee 3

 The National Audit Office (NAO) consultation on the New Code of Audit 
Practice 2020/21 was highlighted as it would apply to audits from 2020/21 
onwards.

RESOLVED:  THAT 
1. The members noted the progress of Mazars in delivering their responsibilities 

as the city council’s external auditor;
2. The members noted the papers in Appendix A highlighting emerging national 

issues and developments.

6c. Internal Audit Charter
 It was reported that the CIIA model was used and section 7 set out in detail 

the independence of audit. 
 The committee was informed of minor updates in the revised Charter.

RESOLVED:  THAT the committee approved the updated version of the Internal 
Audit Charter 2019/20.

6d. Internal Audit Quality and Improvement Programme
 The action plan was highlighted and the actions included those from the self-

assessment and from the external assessment.
 The Key performance Indicators (KPIs) were reported in Appendix A.
 Does the Internal Audit Team, have the capacity to address the KPIs and all 

its other responsibilities?
It was confirmed that the Internal Audit Team was up to full capacity and 
progress made was good and on track.

 Who is responsible in terms of audit for Manchester Airport?
Joanne Hardman agreed to investigate how we receive assurance around the 
council’s interests in  Manchester Airport. 

RESOLVED: THAT the committee approved the content of the report and 
approved the updated Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme.

6e. Internal Audit Progress Report July 2019 – October 2019
David Smith introduced the report and highlighted the following.
 Table 1 showed the audits that had been conducted since the last meeting.
 There were currently no limited assurances for schools.
 The New Broadwalk Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) had been assessed as 

satisfactory.
 The Primary Partnership Centre (Alderbrook) PRU’s Post Implementation 

Audit was satisfactory and any issues to address would be dealt with by the 
management committee at the next meeting.

 The Whistleblowing Policy had been approved at the Workforce Panel in 
September.  The policy had been made more user friendly, following feedback 
received, in recognition of the importance of the policy so that it was easy to 
understand and to use. A copy of the Whistleblowing Policy would be 
circulated to the members following the meeting.

 It was reported that the following audit work had been recently started:

Page 3



Salford City Council - Audit & Accounts Committee 4

o Integrated Agenda (Best Value Programme)
o Personal Budgets (Children and Families)
o Salford Community Leisure – Client Side
o Urban Vision Transition (Programme Governance)
o Service Charges and Fees (Health Checks)
o Payroll: Timesheets
o Council Tax and Business Rates
o School Audits (ongoing)

 The members’ attention was drawn to Appendix 1 – The current position 
against the Audit Plan – and also alerted that the Cyber Security Report was 
nearly completed.

 The members considered and noted the contents of this report.

RESOLVED:  THAT the committee thanked David Smith for the comprehensive 
report and noted the report.

7. ADDITIONAL URGENT ITEM – THE BRIEFING NOTE – REPORTING OF 
SALFORD CITY COUNCIL STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER 
 There had been changes to the Corporate Performance Report and it was 

proposed to change the reporting on the city council’s Strategic Risk Register to 
the committee to half yearly, to fit in with the changes to the Corporate 
Performance Report.  

 The change would mean the committee would receive a 6 monthly report and a 
year-end update.

 If the change was agreed the six monthly report would be presented at the next 
meeting in January 2020.

RESOLVED:  THAT the committee agreed the changes to the reporting of the city 
council’s Strategic Risk Register to a six month and end of year report.

 
8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED: THAT, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
ground that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in the 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 

PART 2 – CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC

9. URGENT BUSINESS – PART 2
There was no urgent Part 2 business to consider.

10. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING
Wednesday 22nd January 2020 at 2pm in Committee Room 1.

Page 4



Salford City Council - Audit & Accounts Committee 5

Committee Members attendance 2019
 = present; A = Apologies submitted; Blank = No apologies submitted.

Councillor Jan March June July Sept Oct
Councillor R Garrido (chair)      

Councillor J Brooks   

Councillor P Coen  A
Councillor P Connor A A A A A
Councillor D Jolley   A   

Councillor R Jones A 

Councillor J King 

Councillor K Lewis  

Councillor M Pevitt A A A  A
Councillor N Reynolds  A
Councillor R Sharpe 

Councillor John Walsh      

Councillor B Hinds (invitee)      

Vittoria Bugana (co-opted member)      

 Bruce Cowen (co-opted member)  A 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public
Part 2 – Closed to the Public

ITEM NO.

REPORT OF: Joint Head of Planning and Performance

TO: Audit and Accounts Committee 

ON: Wednesday 22 January 2020

TITLE: Quarter 2/half-year 2019-20 Strategic Risk Register update 

RECOMMENDATIONS:

It is recommended that Audit and Accounts Committee Members:
a) Note the contents of the Quarter 2/half-year 2019/20 Strategic Risk 

Register update and risk movement attached at Appendix 1.
b) Note the review of the council’s Strategic Risk Register that is taking 

place as part of the council’s business planning for 2020-21.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Risk Management in Salford City Council is about improving our ability to 
deliver outcomes for the community by managing our threats, enhancing our 
opportunities and creating an environment that adds value to ongoing activities.

The report attached at Appendix 1 provides Audit and Accounts Committee 
Members with a summary of the current strategic risks to the delivery of 
Salford’s priorities – The Great Eight. These are monitored through Corporate 
Management Team and Cabinet Briefing.

It has also been some time since a full review of the council’s key risks has 
taken place.  As part of the council’s business planning process for 2020-21 a 
full review of the Strategic Risk Register has taken place. A number of new risks 
have been identified and the revised Strategic Risk Register will be presented 
at the next Audit and Accounts Committee meeting in March.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  Salford City Council Risk Management  
                                                      Strategy and Process 2018-19

2019-20 Strategic Risk Register 

KEY DECISION: NO

Page 7

Agenda Item 10b



2

DETAILS:

1. Background

1.1 Risk management is both a statutory requirement and an important 
part of planning for organisations.

1.2 Risk management in Salford City Council is about improving our ability 
to deliver outcomes for the community by managing our threats, 
enhancing our opportunities and creating an environment that adds 
value to ongoing activities.  By effectively managing our risks and 
opportunities, which is all part of good governance, we will be in a 
stronger position to deliver our objectives, provide improved services 
to the public, work better as a partner with other organisations and 
achieve value for money.

2. Quarter 2/half-year 2019/20 Strategic Risk Register Update
2.1    It is good governance for the Council to maintain and review a register 

of its corporate, strategic and operational risks.  The Strategic Risk 
Register is a tool for capturing important information about our risks 
and is a continual process that is aligned to the council’s corporate 
performance framework.  

2.2 The Strategic Risk Register is updated on a quarterly basis and 
reviewed twice a year through the Corporate Performance Framework 
reporting to Corporate Management Team and Cabinet Briefing. New 
risks are identified, some are terminated and control measures are 
updated in response to changing internal and external events.  The 
Register is then presented to Audit and Accounts Committee who 
review it as part of a regular robust challenge.  

2.3    Risk movement since last report
Quarter 4 2018/19 Quarter 2 2019/20

Summary of risk scores 
currently in Strategic 
Risk Register 

2 3

2

Summary of risk scores 
currently in Strategic Risk 
Register 

2 3

2

Likelihood

  
  

  
  

  
 I

m
pa

ct

Likelihood

  
  

  
  

  
 I

m
pa

ct

Page 8



3

As at the end of Quarter 2, there are seven risks in the council’s 
Strategic Risk Register and three of these have a red risk rating (risk 
score is between 12 and 16):

1. Ensure that the Council plans for the significant scale of change 
forecast over the next 20 years in order to maximise the 
opportunities available from the significant economic 
development taking place across Salford and Greater 
Manchester.

2. The Council will make the most effective use of its resources.
3. Council Cyber Security.

2.4   Risks removed from the Strategic Risk Register

During the first half of 2019/20, there have been no risks removed from 
the Register.  

      2.5   New risks added to the Register

During the first half of the year, there have been no new risks added to 
the Register.  

2.6 Changes in Risk Scores 

All risk scores are reviewed on a quarterly basis. There have been no 
changes to the risk scores during the first half of the year. Appendix 1 
contains the full Strategic Risk Register and details of plans to address 
the risks.

3. Review of Strategic Risk Register

3.1 During discussions at previous Audit and Accounts Committee 
meetings, members raised several queries regarding the current risks 
included in the register and potential further risks that could be 
included. As part of the previous risk update to Audit and Accounts 
Committee a commitment was made to conduct a full review of the 
strategic risk register as part of business planning for 2020-21.

3.2 In order to ensure that risks are identified in line with the City Council’s 
risk management strategy and appropriately linked back to the 
corporate priorities, Corporate Management Team (CMT) took part in 
a facilitated risk identification workshop on 19 November 2019.  The 
workshop, led by the Joint Head of Planning and Performance 
generated a thorough and informative discussion about the current 
and potential risks facing the Council.  During the session a number 
of new risks were identified for inclusion in the 2020/21 Strategic Risk 
Register.  Risk assessments are now being completed for these risks 
and the new Strategic Risk Register will be presented at the next Audit 
and Accounts Committee in March.

Page 9



4

4. Recommendations

It is recommended that Audit and Accounts Committee Members:
a) Note the contents of the Quarter 2/half-year 2019/20 Strategic Risk 

Register update and risk movement attached at Appendix 1.

b) Note the review of the council’s Strategic Risk Register that is 
taking place as part of the council’s business planning for 2020-21.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Corporate Governance
 Risk Management Strategy and Process
 Corporate Performance Framework

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
The risks contained in the register relate to many areas of Council risk. Where 
an equality risk has been identified it will be highlighted in the update report.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: This is contained in the Risk Register attached.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  Risk Management is a statutory requirement and a 
key part of the Council’s corporate governance.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  Risk management is aligned to the council’s 
financial planning process. Risk management processes are considered 
within existing budgets to manage the risk or contingency plans can be 
implemented should any risks be triggered.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Risk management is aligned to the 
council’s procurement processes.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Risk Management is aligned to the council’s HR policies 
and processes.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: All Service Groups have been 
consulted.

CONTACT OFFICER: Emma Reid, Joint Head of Planning and  
                                    Performance
TEL NO:                      0161 793 3585

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 10



5

         Quarter 2/half-year 2019/20 Strategic Risk Register

Summary of risk scores currently in Strategic Risk Register 

2 3

2

Part A – Actively Monitored Risks – these are the key strategic risks that currently present a significant risk to the Council

Risk Code & Title Current Risk Matrix Current Risk 
Likelihood

Current Risk 
Impact

Current Risk  
Score Risk Original Matrix Original Risk 

Score

SRRA01 Increase in the number of 
pupils attending schools in Salford 2 3 6 12

Current treatments and 
controls

An adopted pupil place planning strategy (incorporating primary, secondary and SEN) is in place to ensure that the city council is meeting its statutory 
responsibility for providing sufficient school places. The strategy and methodology for pupil forecasting is reviewed annually to ensure accuracy.
Primary - To date an additional 5,000 permanent primary school places have been created (equates to an additional 24 forms of entry). The built in 
capacity created to date should be sufficient to meet forecast demand over the next 4 years.
Secondary - Current forecasts show that an additional 2,000-2,500 high school places are required over the next 5-7 years. There are a number of 
immediate solutions available such as bringing existing school space/buildings back into school use. This will mean the Local Authority can meet the 
demand for secondary school places in the short term with expansion programmes being required to meet medium and long term. 

Risk Contingency Plan

Governance via Mayoral Working Party is holding all partners (Children's Services, Environment, Urban Vision and Finance) to account. There is an 
opportunity to collectively manage risk and prioritise resources. Some areas of the city still remain a challenge due to the high levels of in year migration 
and lack of permanent solutions which needs to be closely monitored. The additional capacity created to date across the primary estate provides a 
comfortable level of surplus to assist with managing any ongoing demand risk. There also remains a level of existing capacity within the current 
secondary estate to assist with short term forecasted demand.

Managed By Cathy Starbuck

Potential actions for Quarter 2 2019/20

            Appendix 1

Likelihood

  
  

  
  

  
 I

m
pa

ct

P
age 11



6

improvement - Quarterly 
update Primary Provision – Reception Year demand for September 2019 has been met across all 12 primary planning areas.  Based on the current primary 

forecast data (excluding further growth from migration/new housing) and taking into consideration the capacity already in the system at present there 
are no plans to undertake any further large scale primary expansions. However due to the predicted growth for 2021 intake, it may be necessary to 
create some level of additional capacity across a number of planning areas.  Initially this would be in the form of bulge classes. Some planning areas are 
also carrying more surplus capacity than others and as such these areas may be required to support adjoining planning areas. This will be dependent on 
distance and whether a reasonable alternative school place can be offered.
Secondary Provision – Year 7 demand for September 2019 has been met across all 3 secondary planning areas. That said in order to allocate 
reasonable offers and ensure we are carrying a suitable level of surplus it has been necessary to create additional capacity (extra 108 places) via bulge 
classes across 4 schools.  Revised forecast data is showing that there will be a need to create additional capacity to meet the year on year growth. The 
current physical capacity within the existing secondary school estate shows that we should be able to meet demand up until 2022-23 via the creation of 
bulge classes. This however will still require buy-in from the relevant Trusts. Planning options and solutions to meet demand in the longer term (post 
2022) is underway, part of which includes the approach that has been made from a Free School provider to support predicted growth across school 
planning area 101 (Swinton, Little Hulton and Walkden).
Specialist and Alternative Provision – Forecasting for special educational provision is more complicated than for mainstream schools. It is important 
that we know that all children and young people with SEND (Special Educational Needs and Disabilities) are attending the right provision at the right time 
and which is of good quality. A strong offer of enhanced resource provision in mainstream schools meets a range of needs and which is an integral 
feature of a well-defined continuum of provision. The SEND Capital Fund has been utilised to increase the sufficiency of this offer by adding an additional 
place provision for children with autism, and place provision for children with social emotional and health needs and added significant capacity to the 
early years offer at special school. Salford has been successful in securing approval for a new special free school comprising 50 places for children and 
young people aged 11-16 with autism and social emotional/mental health needs. This will need to be monitored and managed in line with the Local 
Authority’s strategy duty to provide enough school places.  P

age 12



7

Risk Code & Title Current Risk Matrix Current Risk 
Likelihood

Current Risk 
Impact

Current Risk  
Score Risk Original Matrix Original Risk 

Score

SRRA01a Permanent statistical 
data analysis to support the 
statutory pupil place planning 
function

2 3 6 12 

Current treatments and 
controls

Local authorities are required by central government to produce accurate pupil forecasts and have up to date information on the overall capacity required 
within the school systems to meet both the immediate and long term projected demand. This to ensure that authorities are able to respond effectively 
and take strategic decisions about how many places are likely to be needed (where, when and for how long). 
The option of buying in the function externally has been previously explored, however the costs were extremely high. In any event the city council would 
still have to be highly involved and be responsible for providing all the statistical data sets, regular updates and analyse actuals against projected in order 
to produce robust forecast data. Therefore we would still require an experienced officer with knowledge, understanding of pupil forecasting and access to 
the relevant data. We have also previously discussed options with other local authorities with regards to a shared function, however this has proved 
challenging due to resource pressures. In addition as each local authority faces different challenges and issues the forecast models used vary and are 
Local Authority specific to meet the needs and challenges of each Authority. 

Risk Contingency Plan
The departure of the permanent post holder in October 2018 left the position vacant until the end of March 2019. This has now been filled and on-going 
development of the service is being reviewed to ensure the necessary knowledge, skills and resilience for the technical elements of the role are in place. 
Without this, the ability to meet statutory responsibilities, and to support planning of statutory functions, would remain a high risk.

Managed By Paula Newall

Potential actions for 
improvement - Quarterly 
update

Quarter 2 2019/20

There are serious risks and potential consequences where there is a lack of accurate statistical data such as:- 
 Not having sufficient capacity to meet demand/and or over supplying – this can have significant financial implications both on revenue and capital 

spend. 
 Reacting in timely manner to manage the risk and create and plan for the correct school capacity.
 Not meeting DfE requirements and deadlines - this could lead to potential reputational damage, poor annual scoring and lack of confidence in our 

methodology. 
 Risk of not attracting the correct future funding and Basic Needs budgets - this allocation is driven directly by our statistical annual return and 

methodology. 
 Lack of financial management in supporting schools through the PPP process via School Forum - risk around staffing levels at school i.e. over supply 

that may need to continue due to notice period for redundancy and under supply by not having time to recruit. 
 Lack of support and notice given to Schools (February timeframe) for them to positively react to staffing changes required. 
 Not being compliant around staff pupil ratio and class size legislation.  

P
age 13



8

Risk Code & Title Current Risk Matrix Current Risk 
Likelihood

Current Risk 
Impact

Current Risk  
Score Risk Original Matrix Original Risk 

Score

SRRA02 Ensure that the Council 
plans for the significant scale of 
change forecast over the next 20 
years in order to maximise the 
opportunities available from the 
significant economic development 
taking place across Salford and 
Greater Manchester

3 4 12 12

Current treatments and 
controls

Lead and support work on the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF) which will define both GM and Salford housing and employment land 
requirements. 
Produce a Local Plan which will be complementary to the GMSF.  

Risk Contingency Plan The GMSF work programme is continually updated to take account of changing circumstances and risks, and a temporary project manager has been 
appointed to deliver this. The Salford Local Plan work programme is updated accordingly, to maintain alignment of the two processes.  

Managed By Chris Findley

Potential actions for 
improvement - Quarterly 
update

Quarter 2 2019/20 

GMSF (Greater Manchester Spatial Framework)
 Consultation on the Revised Draft GMSF took place between January and March 2019 and responses were received from 17,500 individuals and 

organisations.
 Timetable for the next consultation is summer 2020 (approved by Greater Manchester Combined Authority on Friday 30 September).
 This is to allow time for Government to amend the relevant Spatial Development Strategy Regulations, engage more fully with residents and 

other interested parties, and undertake a 12 week consultation.
 Salford City Council officers will continue to provide support and input into the GMSF process on a range of evidence base documents over the 

coming months, including transport assessments, viability appraisals and a ground conditions survey.
Local Plan

 Consultation on the Revised Draft Local Plan finished on 22 March 2019 and officers have been considering the responses and making 
amendments to the documents in response to these.

 Representations were received from 680 individuals and organisations and these are due to be published on 30 September 2019.
 Having regard to the delay to the GMSF timetable, the Local Plan is now being progressed in two parts.
 Part 1, which focuses on development management and related policies, will be “published” in January 2020 and comments invited over a 6 

week period. The submission of the plan will follow in May 2020 and the independent examination in September/October 2020.
 Part 1 of the plan will exclude site allocations and proposals for the overall scale and distribution of development as it is not possible to progress 

the elements of the plan relating to this until the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF) has been completed.  These elements will 
therefore be covered by a part 2 of the Local Plan (a Core Strategy and Allocations document). The timetable for the production of this will be 
dependent on GMSF progress and it is expected that work will start on this in mid to late 2021 once the GMSF examination is underway or 
completed.

Risk Code & Title Current Risk Matrix Current Risk Current Risk Current Risk  Risk Original Matrix Original Risk 

P
age 14



9

Likelihood Impact Score Score

SRRA05 The Council will make the 
most effective use of its resources 3 4 12 12

Current treatments and 
controls

Monthly monitoring against savings targets and budgets help the Council to identify any slippages in its savings programme as early as possible. HR and 
OD work closely with service directorates to redesign services in response to public service reform, new and emerging technologies and new ways of 
working. Ensuring appropriate workforce development plans are in place to ensure we have people in the right place with the right skills maximising the 
opportunities that the apprenticeship levy provides. Sickness, disciplinary and grievance cases are regularly monitored and analysed to identify trends 
and targeted support to address any underlying issues.

Risk Contingency Plan  

Managed By Samantha Betts; Joanne Hardman

Potential actions for 
improvement - Quarterly 
update

Quarter 2 2019/20

Through a squad working approach the Council continues to make progress with significant change programmes across all three service directorates 
using the Salford Way change methodology. Workforce Panel have considered an update on [My]Work which is the Council’s approach to enabling people 
to work smarter reducing unnecessary travel and supporting place based working.
Budget monitoring has identified continuing pressures mainly within Children’s Services, more specifically, looked after children. The service has identified 
opportunities to begin to address these pressures for example through the adoption of the No Wrong Door model which has been enabled by the 
integrated commissioning approach to children’s services which will see the Clinical Commissioning Group provide investment for the transformation of 
services. In the short term it is anticipated that it will be possible to offset these pressures without recourse to general balances.
A recovery plan has been submitted to address the deficit on the Dedicated Schools Grant with a response anticipated by the year end.

Risk Code & Title Current Risk Matrix Current Risk 
Likelihood

Current Risk 
Impact

Current Risk  
Score Risk Original Matrix Original Risk 

Score

SRRA07 Council Cyber Security 3 4 12 12

Current treatments and 
controls

At present the following measures are in place or in progress:- 
 All PCs, Laptops and Servers on the Council's IT network are protected by Virus Protection Systems, which are controlled centrally by ICT and 

cannot be disabled. 
 All incoming mail is scanned automatically by 2 separate systems to ensure that it does not contain viruses or malware. 
 Multiple layers of firewall are in place on all external connections to the Council's network, preventing unauthorised access to data and systems 
 All systems that are accessible from outside the Council, such as the Customer portal, are located in a special area of the network that is 

separated from the main Council network. 
 Regular penetration tests are carried out on all external access points to the Council's network to ensure unauthorised access cannot be 

achieved. 

P
age 15



10

 JANet who provide our internet access to schools has dedicated security and network teams that have expertise in dealing with DoS attacks. As 
well as investigating incidents targeted at them they assist customers when they are targeted. 

 Deep Security by Trend Micro is deployed which delivers automated server protection through host-based security controls, including anti-
malware, intrusion prevention (IPS), firewall, integrity monitoring, application control and log inspection. 

 Structural Modification - inspecting links and data within documents/ emails for malicious code attempting to redirect unsuspecting users. These 
links can be manipulated before onward delivery. 

 Micro segmentation - the ability to logically segment parts of our Server Infrastructure ensuring a single compromised host does not impact the 
rest of the infrastructure. 

 User awareness - regular communication with end users highlighting the risks to staff and users to always question what they receive and 
whether to open files. The first line of defence is often employee education. Little can be done to prevent an employee's actions that are both 
deliberate and malicious.  

Risk Contingency Plan  

Managed By Steven Fry

Potential actions for 
improvement - Quarterly 
update

Quarter 2 2019/20 

• On track to complete internal audit on Cyber Security audit.
 Re-certified ISO27001 standard Q1.
 Procurement of GMCA cyber security e-learning module.

Risk Code & Title Current Risk Matrix Current Risk 
Likelihood

Current Risk 
Impact

Current Risk  
Score Risk Original Matrix Original Risk 

Score

SRRA10 Non-compliance with 
statutory Information Governance 
requirements

2 4 8 12

Current treatments and 
controls

The Council will continue to be supported by the AGMA FoIA/DPA Co-ordinator and the Greater Manchester Information Governance group. 
New training to be rolled out covering cyber security and data protection.
Dedicated Information Governance team gives advice to council teams covering all aspects of data protection.
Collaboration with health partners and other agencies to ensure lawful data sharing. 

Risk Contingency Plan  

Managed By Miranda Carruthers-Watt

Potential actions for 
improvement - Quarterly 
update

Quarter 2 2019/20 

New Information Governance Support Officer to be recruited to allow Principal Officers to concentrate on Data Protection/Freedom of Information/Subject 
Access Requests.
Work continuing on the Records of Processing Activities (ROPA).
Information Governance/ICT Policies monitored and reviewed to maintain compliance. 

P
age 16



11

Part B – Information Risks – this strategic risk does not present a significant risk to the council but still needs to be monitored should the situation 
change in the future as any changes would have a serious impact

Risk Code & Title Current Risk Matrix Current Risk 
Likelihood

Current Risk 
Impact

Current Risk  
Score Risk Original Matrix Original Risk 

Score

SRRB01 The Council will continue 
to improve the safety of children 
and young people

2 4 8 8

Current treatments and 
controls

Demand for services continues to increase and this is evidenced within the data for the Bridge/MASH. 
The introduction of a new on line form was implemented at the beginning of May 2016. This will support partners in a much easier way to refer in. 
The number of children and young people becoming looked after and subject to a child protection plan has started to decrease. The work of the LAC 
Strategic Board is supporting and understanding the decrease in LAC numbers. Data is showing a marked improvement in the 15 days to conference. 
Performance management is shared at all strategic levels within Children's Services and politically shared with the Lead Member. 
To ensure practice and staff well-being is maintained at a high standard a workforce development officer has been appointed and will take up the position 
in July 2016. Two appointments made. A Workforce Development Manager and Social Work Improvement Officer to support the workforce in meeting the 
ever rising demand for services. This is a national issue, demand is rising across the country and staffing levels are being discussed. There has been no 
increase in the established workforce since 2010; a paper has been produced with several areas for increasing capacity highlighted. 
Money has been made available to appoint 5 social workers above establishment to support the demand pressures within the system to support the staff 
to have lower case-loads. A peer review is being held in February 2018 to consider whether the demand is being managed appropriately.  

Risk Contingency Plan Several strategic boards lead the work of the directorate and enable the performance to be picked up quickly and effectively.  

Managed By Zoe Fearon

Potential actions for 
improvement - Quarterly 
update

Quarter 2 2019/20 

Significant work has been undertaken over the last 12 months in relation to Neglect within the City, this culminated in a Neglect Summit on 29 October 
attended by over 70 professionals from across the partnership. The Neglect Strategy will be launched in the next few weeks which will include specific 
tools to support professionals working directly with children and families in order to identify neglect at the earliest opportunity. Weekly performance 
reports are being developed to enable closer monitoring and scrutiny of the work being delivered to children and families in order to continue to drive 
improvement across the service.

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annual Audit Letter
Salford City Council
Year ending 31 March 2019

Page 19

Agenda Item 10c



CONTENTS

1. Executive summary

2. Audit of the financial statements

3. Value for Money conclusion

4. Other reporting responsibilities

5. Our fees

6. Forward look

Our reports are prepared in the context of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd. Reports 

and letters prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to members or officers are prepared for the sole use of the Council and we take no responsibility to any 

member or officer in their individual capacity or to any third party.

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in 

England and Wales.

1
Page 20



Purpose of the Annual Audit Letter

Our Annual Audit Letter summarises the work we have undertaken as the auditor for Salford City Council (the Council) for the year 

ended 31 March 2019.  Although this letter is addressed to the Council, it is designed to be read by a wider audience including members 

of the public and other external stakeholders.  

Our responsibilities are defined by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice issued by 

the National Audit Office (the NAO).  The detailed sections of this letter provide details on those responsibilities, the work we have done 

to discharge them, and the key findings arising from our work.  These are summarised below.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Area of responsibility Summary

Audit of the financial statements

Our auditor’s report issued on 18 October 2019 included our opinion that the financial 

statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 31 March 2019 and 

of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19

Other information published 

alongside the audited financial 

statements

Our auditor’s report issued on 18 October 2019  included our opinion that: 

• The other information in the Statement of Accounts is consistent with the audited 

financial statements.

Value for Money conclusion

Our auditor’s report concluded that we are satisfied that in all significant respects, the 

Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

Reporting to the group auditor

In line with group audit instructions issued by the NAO, on 18 October 2019 we 

reported to the group auditor in line with the requirements applicable to the Council’s 

WGA return.

Statutory reporting 

Our auditor’s report confirmed that we did not use our powers under s24 of the 2014 

Act to issue a report in the public interest or to make written recommendations to the 

Council.

Certificate
We certified that we have completed the audit of Salford City Council in accordance 

with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice on 18 October 2019.

Page 21



The scope of our audit and the results of our work

The purpose of our audit is to provide reasonable assurance to users that the financial statements are free from material error. We do 

this by expressing an opinion on whether the statements are prepared, in all material respects, in line with the financial reporting 

framework applicable to the Council and whether they give a true and fair view of the Council‘s financial position as at 31 March 2019 

and of its financial performance for the year then ended. 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice issued by the NAO, and International 

Standards on Auditing (ISAs).  These require us to consider whether:

▪ the accounting policies are appropriate to the Council's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 

disclosed;

▪ the significant accounting estimates made by management in the preparation of the financial statements are reasonable; and

▪ the overall presentation of the financial statements provides a true and fair view.

Our auditor’s report, issued to the Council on 18 October 2019,  stated that, in our view, the financial statements give a true and fair view 

of the Council’s financial position as at 31 March 2019 and of its financial performance for the year then ended

Our approach to materiality

We apply the concept of materiality when planning and performing our audit, and when evaluating the effect of misstatements identified 

as part of our work.   We consider the concept of materiality at numerous stages throughout the audit process, in particular when 

determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures, and when evaluating the effect of uncorrected misstatements. An 

item is considered material if its misstatement or omission could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users of 

the financial statements. 

Judgements about materiality are made in the light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by both qualitative and quantitative 

factors.  As a result we have set materiality for the financial statements as a whole (financial statement materiality) and a lower level of 

materiality for specific items of account (specific materiality) due to the nature of these items or because they attract public interest.  We 

also set a threshold for reporting identified misstatements to the Audit and Accounts Committee.  We call this our trivial threshold.

The table below provides details of the materiality levels applied in the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2019:

2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

Opinion on the financial statements Unqualified

Financial statement materiality 

Our financial statement materiality is based on 2% of 

Gross Revenue Expenditure at surplus/deficit on 

provision of services.

£15,645,000

Trivial threshold
Our trivial threshold is based on 3% of financial

statement materiality.
£469,000

Specific materiality

We have applied a lower level of materiality to the 

following area of the accounts:

- Officer remuneration Bandings £5,000 (reflecting the 

published salary bandings)

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 22



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our response to significant risks, key areas of management judgement and enhanced risk

As part of our continuous planning procedures we considered whether there were risks of material misstatement in the Council's

financial statements that required special audit consideration. We reported significant risks and key areas of management judgement

identified at the planning stage to the Audit and Accounts Committee within our Audit Strategy Memorandum and provided details of

how we responded to those risks in our Audit Completion Report. The table below outlines the identified significant risks, the work we

carried out on those risks and our conclusions

4

Identified significant risk Our response Our findings and conclusions

Property, plant and equipment 

valuation

The CIPFA Code requires that where 

assets are subject to revaluation, their 

year end carrying value should reflect the 

fair value at that date. The Council has 

adopted a rolling revaluation model which 

sees all land and buildings revalued in a 

five year cycle. 

The valuation of Property, Plant & 

Equipment involves the use of a 

management expert (the valuer), and 

incorporates assumptions and estimates 

which impact materially on the reported 

value. There are risks relating to the 

valuation process.

As a result of the rolling programme of 

revaluations, there is a risk that individual 

assets which have not been revalued for 

up to four years are not valued at their 

materially correct fair value. In addition, 

as the valuations are undertaken through 

the year there is a risk that the fair value 

as the assets is materially different at the 

year end.

We have:

• Critically assessed the Council’s valuer’s scope 

of work, qualifications, objectivity and 

independence to carry out the Council’s 

programme of revaluations;

• Considered whether the overall revaluation 

methodology used by the Council valuer is in 

line with industry practice, the CIPFA Code of 

Practice and the Council’s accounting policies;

• Critically assessed the appropriateness of the 

underlying data and the assumptions used in the 

valuer’s calculations, based on our expectations 

by reference to sector and local knowledge;

• Assessed the movement in market indices 

between the revaluation dates and the year end 

to determine whether there have been material 

movements over that time;

• Critically assessed the appropriateness of the 

social housing factor applied to the valuation of 

the Council Dwellings

• Critically assessed the treatment of the upward 

and downward revaluations in the Council’s 

financial statements with regards to the 

requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice;

• Critically assessed the approach that the 

Council adopts to ensure that assets not subject 

to revaluation in 2018/19 are materially correct, 

including considering the robustness of that 

approach in light of the valuation information 

reported by the Council’s valuer;

• Tested a sample of items of capital expenditure 

in 2018/19 to confirm that the additions are 

appropriately valued in the financial statements.

Our review of the valuation

methodology used by the

Council identified that the

Council estimate the value of

fixtures and fittings within

operational buildings as 7.5% of

the value of the asset. This

estimate is not consistent with

guidance contained within the

CIPFA Code.

The Statement of Accounts

have been amended to remove

this estimate from the overall

valuation. The main impact of

this change is to reduce the

valuation of Property, Plant and

Equipment on the Balance

Sheet with a number of

consequential amendments

impacting other primary

statements and notes to the

accounts.

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 23



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our response to significant risks, key areas of management judgement and enhanced risk

.

5

Identified significant risk Our response
Our findings and 

conclusions

Defined benefit liability valuation

The net pension liability represents a 

material element of the Council’s balance 

sheet. The Council is an admitted body of 

Greater Manchester Pension Fund, which 

had its last triennial valuation completed as 

at 31 March 2016.

The valuation of the Local Government 

Pension Scheme relies on a number of 

assumptions, most notably around the 

actuarial assumptions, and actuarial 

methodology which results in the Council’s 

overall valuation.

There are financial assumptions and 

demographic assumptions used in the 

calculation of the Council’s valuation, such 

as the discount rate, inflation rates and 

mortality rates. The assumptions should 

also reflect the profile of the Council’s 

employees, and should be based on 

appropriate data. The basis of the 

assumptions is derived on a consistent 

basis year to year, or updated to reflect any 

changes.

There is a risk that the assumptions and 

methodology used in valuing the Council’s 

pension obligation are not reasonable or 

appropriate to the Council’s circumstances. 

This could have a material impact to the net 

pension liability in 2018/19.

We have:

• Critically assessed the competency, objectivity 

and independence of the Greater Manchester 

Pension Fund’s Actuary, Hymans Robertson;

• Liaised with the auditors of the Greater 

Manchester Pension Fund to gain assurance 

that the controls in place at the Pension Fund 

are operating effectively. This will include the 

processes and controls in place to ensure data 

provided to the Actuary by the Pension Fund 

for the purposes of the IAS19 valuation is 

complete and accurate;

• Tested payroll transactions at the Council to 

provide assurance over the pension 

contributions which are deducted and paid to 

the Pension Fund by the Council;

• Reviewed the appropriateness of the Pension 

Asset and Liability valuation methodologies 

applied by the Pension Fund Actuary, and the 

key assumptions included within the valuation. 

This will include comparing them to expected 

ranges, utilising information provided by PWC, 

consulting actuary engaged by the National 

Audit Office;

• Agreed the data in the IAS 19 valuation report 

provided by the Fund Actuary for accounting 

purposes to the pension accounting entries and 

disclosures in the Council’s financial 

statements.

Our programme of work

in relation to this risk did

not identify any significant

findings.

We requested that

Management review the

basis of the estimate for

the pension liability

disclosed within the draft

statements following the

outcome of two recent

court cases and provide

us with an updated

assessment The

consequence of the

Supreme Court decisions

was expected to create

an additional liability. The

Management assessment

confirmed that the impact

is not material and

therefore Management

did not amend the

accounts on the grounds

of materiality.

Management override of controls

In all entities, management at various levels 

within an organisation are in a unique 

position to perpetrate fraud because of their 

ability to manipulate accounting records and 

prepare fraudulent financial statements by 

overriding controls that otherwise appear to 

be operating effectively. Due to the 

unpredictable way in which such override 

could occur, we consider there to be a risk 

of material misstatement due to fraud and 

thus a significant risk on all audits

We have:

• reviewed accounting estimates impacting on

amounts included in the financial statements;

• considered any identified significant

transactions outside the normal course of

business; and

• tested Journals recorded in the general ledger

and other adjustments made in preparation of

the financial statements.

There are no significant 

matters arising from our 

work on the management 

override of controls

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 24



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our response to significant risks, key areas of management judgement and enhanced risk

.

6

Key area of management 

judgement/Enhanced risk
Our response Our findings and conclusions

Applicability of Group Financial Statements

The Council undertake an annual assessment to 

determine whether there have been any changes 

within the Council group boundary that would 

require the production of group accounts.

The Council has made judgements around the 

group entities it considers and how it  might 

consolidate transactions and balances into the 

group.

We have:

Reviewed the 2018/19 assessment that

the Council completed to determine

whether there have been any changes

within the group boundary that would

require the production of group

accounts.

Our review of the assessment 

completed by the Council did 

not identify any issues and we 

concluded that the Council 

judgement that group financial 

statements are not applicable 

was appropriate.

Valuation of Airport Shares

The Council’s shareholding in the Manchester 

Airport Group PLC has been valued by a firm of 

financial experts  based on assumptions about 

financial performance, stability and key  business 

projections.  The figure disclosed in your 

accounts in relation to Manchester Airport 

Holdings Limited is at fair value. 

There is a risk that the assumptions and 

methodology used by your experts are not 

appropriate and we will need to obtain assurance 

that accounting entries are not materially 

misstated.

We have:

• assessed the scope of work 

performed, qualifications, objectivity 

and independence of the expert 

engaged to carry out the valuation 

assessment of the airport shares; 

and

• Utilised the services of our internal 

valuation experts to review the work 

completed by  BDO as the 

Management expert and evaluate 

the appropriateness of the 

assumptions applied to arrive at the 

figure in the financial statements.

We have not identified any 

significant matters from our 

testing of the valuation of the 

Council’s shareholding in 

Manchester Airport Holdings 

Ltd. 

Accounting for PFI and LIFT schemes

Between March 2003 and September 2013, the 

Council entered into a number of service 

concession contracts with providers for local 

improvement finance trust (LIFT) and private 

finance initiative (PFI) schemes.

The outstanding liability relating to these 

schemes represent a material figure on the 

Council’s balance sheet and the balances are 

derived from financial models that incorporate 

assumptions and estimates which impact 

materially on the reported value.

There is a risk that the assumptions and 

methodology applied to calculate the accounting 

entries are not appropriate and given this is the 

first year of our appointment as your external 

auditors we will need to obtain assurance that 

accounting entries are not materially misstated.

We have:

• reviewed the Council IFRIC 12 

assessments and associated 

disclosures;

• considered whether the accounting 

model reflects the operator's model 

and produces reliable results for the 

financial statements; and

• checked that outputs from the 

accounting model are correctly 

reflected in the financial statements, 

relevant disclosures have been 

made and these agree to supporting 

documentation.

We have:

• reviewed the Council IFRIC 

12 assessments and 

associated disclosures.

• considered whether the 

accounting model reflects 

the operator's model and 

produces reliable results for 

the financial statements.

• checked that outputs from 

the accounting model are 

correctly reflected in the 

financial statements, 

relevant disclosures have 

been made and these agree 

to supporting 

documentation.

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 25



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Internal control recommendations
As part of our audit we considered the internal controls in place that are relevant to the preparation of the financial statements.  We did 

this to design audit procedures that allow us to express our opinion on the financial statements, but this did not extend to us expressing 

an opinion on the effectiveness of internal controls.  We identified the following deficiencies in internal control as part of our audit.

7

Description of deficiency Process for identifying Related Party Transactions

The Council process to identify and consider applicable related party transactions includes the 

issue of declaration of interest forms to each Councillor and Senior officer annually.  Our testing 

of 2018/19  returns noted that of the 60 members, only 40 declaration forms were completed.

Potential effects That the Council would not be aware of all relevant disclosures and consequently,  the related 

party transaction disclosure is incomplete.

Recommendation The Council should ensure all declarations are returned.

Management response The council will seek to maximise return of related party forms from members. Reminders will 

be sent from the consolidation team and progress reported to Audit & Accounts committee and 

Cabinet.

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 26



Our approach to Value for Money
We are required to consider whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

its use of resources.  The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out in order to form our 

conclusion, and sets out the criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider. 

The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 

and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.’  To assist auditors in reaching a 

conclusion on this overall criterion, the following sub-criteria are set out by the NAO:

▪ Informed decision making

▪ Sustainable resource deployment

▪ Working with partners and other third parties

Significant Value for Money risks
The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work to identify whether or not a risk to the Value for Money conclusion exists. Risk, in the 

context of our Value for Money work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements in place 

at the Council being inadequate.  In our Audit Strategy Memorandum, we reported that we identified one significant Value for Money risk.  

The work we carried out in relation to significant risks is outlined overleaf.

Overall Value for Money Conclusion

Our auditor’s report, issued to the Council on 18 October 2019, stated that that, is all significant respects, the Council put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31st March 2019.  

8

3. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION

Value for Money conclusion Unqualified

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 27



Significant Value for Money risks

9

5. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION (CONTINUED)

Risk

The Council has delivered the financial savings required to date and between 2010/11 and 2017/18 achieved savings in excess of  

£187m. Despite this the Council continues to face a difficult financial position. The Council's Efficiency Plan 2016/17 - 2019/20 set 

out the need to achieve cumulative reductions of £64m over the period with the 2018/19 revenue budget requiring savings of 

£11.225m.  Early 2018/19 budget monitoring reports set out a projected year end overspend of £5.807m putting greater pressure

on reserves and service delivery.

These continued pressures are a significant risk  in respect of the arrangements the Council has in place to deliver financial 

sustainability over the medium term.

Work Undertaken and Findings

We reviewed the Council’s arrangements for identifying and updating savings plans alongside the arrangements in place for

monitoring and delivery of the budget and medium term financial plan. We reviewed assessments of the adequacy of reserves

and balances and consider the Council’s plans to secure long term financial sustainability.

Findings

The Council continues to have a good track record of achieving the level of required savings having delivered cumulative savings

of £187m between 2010/11 and 2017/18. The Council continues to take a longer term strategic view of service delivery and the

Council's Efficiency Plan 2016/17 - 2019/20 set out the need to achieve cumulative reductions of £64m over the period including

£11.225m in 2018/19.

The 2018/19 revenue budget, presented to Members in February 2018, included detailed savings plans setting out the key

proposals. Progress against the required savings position has been reported to members on a quarterly basis throughout the

year. The reports to members set out clearly progress made toward achieving the required savings requirements and analyses

the various saving proposals using a traffic light system for clarity.

There were significant pressures on some spending areas during 2018/19 as highlighted in the regular revenue budget monitoring

reports. In particular, as with many councils, there was real pressure on the Children's services budget due to an increase in the

number of looked after children and more costly placements. The Council has plans in place to take appropriate action to help

manage the position. The Council are analysing the out of borough placements and evaluating options to potentially bring a

number of those placements within borough.

The Council have a well established approach to financial management with regular budget monitoring reports being produced

and considered by a range of stakeholders including Members and Senior Officers. On a quarterly basis the S151 officer and

Lead member for Finance and support services presents budget monitoring reports to overview and scrutiny to help identify

budget pressures and confirm mitigating actions required at an early stage.

The 2018/19 outturn was a balanced position with an £5.8m overspend in children's services offset by underspends in other

directorates. The Council has appropriate levels of reserves with the general fund balance at 31 March 2019 standing at £13,2m.

This is between the risk based assessment range set by the Council for general reserves of between £12.5m and £18.9m.

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 28



Significant Value for Money risks

10

5. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION (CONTINUED)

Work Undertaken and Findings - Continued

The 2019/20 revenue budget and capital programme originally set out a funding gap of £15.6m. The forecast financial position

is continually subject to monitoring and revision as assumptions and demand pressures change and the updated position set

out a revised savings requirement of £13.060m for 2019/20. In identifying and developing savings proposals, the Council has

sought to minimise the impact on front line services and has worked to:

- identify ways to make one off savings,

- find alternative funding for some services

- identified further efficiencies in how goods and services are purchased, and

- worked to increase income.

A central element of the longer term vision of the Council is to achieve economic growth through regeneration of the Borough

and to date growth is above both the regional and national averages. The Council have focused on bringing investment into the

city. Work has continued with a range of partners to progress significant regeneration developments and these include:

• Middlewood Locks, a 25 acre scheme to deliver 2,215 new homes and up to 900,000 square feet of commercial space.

The first phase of 570 apartments is now complete, with Phase 2 underway

• The Council and University of Salford are continuing to work in conjunction and have devised a masterplan to develop a

world class new city district that will capitalise on the expansion of City Centre Salford connecting Salford Crescent and

University.

• Work on the development of New Bailey 2 and 100 Embankment is nearing completion and the Greengate residential

scheme is well underway.

These schemes have already generated significant number of jobs for the City and created additional income streams for the

Council.

Conclusion

Based on our review findings we conclude that for 2018/19 the Council has made proper arrangements to deliver financial

sustainability in the medium term.

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 29



The NAO’s Code of Audit Practice and the 2014 Act place wider reporting responsibilities on us, as the Council's external auditor.  We 

set out below, the context of these reporting responsibilities and our findings for each.

Matters on which we report by exception

The 2014 Act provides us with specific powers where matters come to our attention that, in our judgement, require reporting action to be 

taken.  We have the power to:

▪ issue a report in the public interest;

▪ make statutory recommendations that must be considered and responded to publicly;

▪ apply to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law; and

▪ issue an advisory notice under schedule 8 of the 2014 Act. 

We have not exercised any of these statutory reporting powers. 

The 2014 Act also gives rights to local electors and other parties, such as the right to ask questions of the auditor and the right to make 

an objection to an item of account. We did not receive any such objections or questions. 

Reporting to the NAO in respect of Whole of Government Accounts consolidation data

The NAO, as group auditor, requires us to complete the WGA Assurance Statement in respect of its consolidation data, and to carry out 

certain tests on the data. We submitted this information to the NAO on 18 October 2019.

Other information published alongside the financial statements 

The Code of Audit Practice requires us to consider whether information published alongside the financial statements is consistent with 

those statements and our knowledge and understanding of the Council.  In our opinion, the other information in the Statement of 

Accounts is consistent with the audited financial statements. 

Certificate of closure of the audit

We certified that we have completed the audit of Salford City Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice

on 31 July 2019.

11

4. OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

Exercise of statutory reporting powers No matters to report

Completion of group audit reporting requirements Consistent

Other information published alongside the audited financial 

statements
Consistent

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 30



Fees for work as the Council’s auditor

We reported our proposed fees for the delivery of our work in the Audit Strategy Memorandum, presented to Audit and Accounts 

Committee in March 2019.

Having completed our work for the 2018/19 financial year, we can confirm that our final proposed fees are as follows:

*The final fee includes the following additional charges:

▪ Fee for additional testing and review required as a consequence of the draft statement of accounts being amended to remove the

estimate that the Council applied whereby the value of fixtures and fittings within operational buildings was included as 7.5% of the

value of the asset. This estimate is not consistent with guidance contained within the CIPFA Code - £6,686

▪ Fee for additional work in respect of the pension liability regarding GMP and McCloud legal rulings - £600.

These additional charges are subject to agreement by the Council and approval by PSAA Ltd.

Fees for other work

We confirm that we have not undertaken any non-audit services for the Council in the year.

12

5. OUR FEES

Area of work 2018/19 proposed fee 2018/19 final fee

Delivery of audit work under the NAO Code of Audit Practice £105,513* £112,799*

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 31



Audit Developments

Code of Audit Practice

The Code of Audit Practice sets out what local auditors of relevant local public bodies are required to do to fulfil their statutory 
responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We have responded to the National Audit Office’s consultation on the 
content of the Code (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/ )

A new Code will be laid in Parliament in time for it to come in to force no later than 1 April 2020.

Financial Resilience

Government Spending Review

The Council will need to incorporate the outcome of the Spending Review in its Medium Term Financial Plan. The Government has
announced that a one year spending review will be completed in September for 2020/21, with the next multi-year Government Spending 
Review being delayed until 2020. The Spending Review will set out the department allocations for 2020/21 and potentially beyond.
Regardless of the timing and period covered by the Spending Review, the Council recognises the key issue is the management of
general reserves to a level that ensures it remains financially resilient and able to deliver sustainable services.  It must, therefore, ensure 
it clarifies and quantifies how it will bridge the funding gap through planned expenditure reductions and/ or income generation schemes.

Local Authority Financial Resilience Index

CIPFA is moving forward with its financial resilience index, which it believes will be a barometer on which local authorities will be judged.  
We would expect the Council to have at least considered the index once it is formally released.

Commercialisation

The National Audit Office will be publishing a report on Commercialisation during 2019.  Depending on the Council’s appetite for
Commercialisation, we would expect the Council to consider the outcome of the report and ensure any lessons learnt are incorporated 
into business practice.

Further, the UK Debt Management Office’s Annual Report, published on 23 July 2019, reported that, as at 31 March 2019, the Public 
Works Loan Board’s loan book was £78.3 billion with 1,308 new loans totalling £9.1 billion advanced during the year.  As a result, we 
expect local authorities to clearly demonstrate:

• the value for money in the use of Public Works Loan Board funds to acquire commercial property 

• the arrangements for loan repayment through the updated Statutory Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision in 2019/20, 
2020/21 and beyond.

Financial Reporting 

UK Local Government Annual Accounts 

The CIPFA/LASAAC Local Authority Code Board specifies the financial reporting requirements for UK local government.  A consultation 
is underway to inform the direction and strategy for local government annual accounts. We will be submitting our response and suggest 
practitioners also voice their opinion.

Lease accounting

The implementation of IFRS 16 Leases in the Code is delayed until 1 April 2020.  The Council will need a project plan to ensure the data 
analysis and evaluation of accounting entries is completed in good time to ensure any changes in both business practice and financial 
reporting are captured. 

13

6. FORWARD LOOK

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 32

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


Partner: Karen Murray

Phone: 0161 238 9248

Mobile: 07721 234 043

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

Senior Manager: Chris Whittingham

Phone: 0151 2372255 

Mobile: 07909 982497
Email:  chris.whittingham@mazars.gov.uk

CONTACT

Page 33

mailto:Karen.murray@mazars.co.uk
mailto:chris.Whittingham@mazars.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee Progress Report 
January 2020

Salford City Council
Year ending 31 March 2020

Page 35

Agenda Item 10d



CONTENTS

1 - Audit Progress

2 - National Publications

2

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Salford City Council. It has been prepared

for the sole use of the Audit & Accounts Committee. No responsibility is accepted to any other

person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent must first be obtained

before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.

Page 36



1. AUDIT PROGRESS

Purpose of this report

This report provides the Audit & Accounts Committee with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities

as your external auditor.

At Section 2 we set out key emerging national issues and developments which may be of interest to Members of

the Committee. If you require any additional information regarding the issues included within this briefing, please

contact any member of your engagement team.

Audit progress

Our key audit stages are summarised in the diagram shown below.

We have now commenced our 2019/20 audit and have met with officers and completed much of our initial

planning. Our on site interim visit to undertake walkthrough testing of core financial systems and early

transactional testing of income and expenditure is planned for later this month and into February 2020.

Our work is on track, and there are no significant matters arising  that we are required to report to you at this 
stage. Our Audit Strategy Memorandum for 2019/20 will be brought to the meeting of the Audit and Accounts 
Committee  scheduled for March 2020. 

• Final review and disclosure checklist of financial 

statements

• Final partner and EQCR review

• Agreeing content of letter of representation

• Reporting to Audit and Accounts Committee 

• Reviewing post balance sheet events

• Signing our opinion 

• Updating our understanding of the Council

• Initial opinion and value for money risk 

assessments

• Development of our audit strategy

• Agreement of timetables

• Preliminary analytical procedures

• Documenting systems and controls

• Walkthrough procedures

• Controls testing, including general and 

application IT controls

• Early substantive testing of transactions

• Review of draft financial statements

• Reassessment of audit strategy,              

revising as necessary

• Delivering our planned audit testing

• Continuous communication on emerging 

issues

• Clearance meeting

Planning

Dec 19-Feb 20

Interim

Jan-April 20

Fieldwork

June-July 20

Completion

July 20

3

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

Page 37



2. NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Publication/update Key points

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)

1. Local Government Financial Resilience index
Online data tool which measures local authorities against a 

range of indicators to assess their level of resilience.

2. Financial Management Code
Guidance for good and sustainable financial management in 

local authorities.

3. Prudential Property Investment Guidance on prudent investments in commercial properties. 

Local Government Association (LGA)

4.
Probity in planning: advice for councillors and officers 

making planning decisions

This 2019 guidance is an update to the 2013 version of the 

Local Government Association’s Probity in Planning.

5. Chief executives' 'must know' for children's services

How to avoid some of the more obvious and dangerous 

errors and challenges involved in leading one of the most 

sensitive, expensive and high-risk areas of local 

government.

6. A Councillors’ guide to procurement
The guide covers questions commonly asked by 

Councillors.

7. Reaching out
Loneliness policy context and consideration of effective local 

delivery models. 

8. A Councillor’s guide to digital connectivity Key information for Councillors. 

Mazars LLP

9. Annual Transparency Report, Mazars

Sets out the steps we take to enhance the quality of our 

audit work and ensure that quality is consistent across the 

firm. 

10. Mazars’ response to the Brydon Review
Mazars’ response to the latest review into the auditing 

profession which was published in December 2019. 

4

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

Page 38



5. NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

5

1. Local Government Financial Resilience index, CIPFA, December 2019

The resilience index is an online data tool which measures local authorities against a range of indicators to assess their level of resilience 
against financial shocks and to support financial decision making. Upper tier authorities are judged against nine indicators including social 
care. 

The indicators measured include: 

• levels of reserves; 

• change in reserves; 

• reserves sustainability; 

• interest payable/net revenue expenditure; 

• gross external debt; 

• social care ratio;

• fees and charges to service expenditure ratio; 

• council tax requirement/net expenditure ratio; and 

• growth above baseline. 

The tool allows for year on year comparisons of each authority’s performance, as well as comparisons with similar and neighbouring 
authorities. Trend analysis is also available for some of the indicators outlined above. 

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-launches-local-government-financial-resilience-index

2. Financial Management Code, CIPFA, October 2019

Strong financial management is an essential part of ensuring public sector finances are sustainable. The Financial Management Code 
(FM Code) provides guidance for good and sustainable financial management in local authorities and aims to provide assurance that they 
are managing resources effectively.

It requires authorities to demonstrate that the processes they have in place satisfy the principles of good financial management. The FM 
Code identifies risks to financial sustainability and introduces a framework of assurance. This framework is built on existing successful 
practices and sets explicit standards of financial management. Complying with the standards set out in the FM Code is the collective 
responsibility of elected members, the chief finance officer and their professional colleagues in the leadership team. Complying with the 
FM Code with help strengthen the framework that surrounds financial decision making.

The FM Code built on elements of other CIPFA codes during its development and its structure and applicability will be familiar to users of 
publications such as The Prudential Code for Capital Finance, Treasury Management in the Public Sector Code of Practice and Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

The Code applies to all local authorities, including police, fire and other authorities.

By following the essential aspects of the FM Code, local authorities are providing evidence to show they are meeting important legislative 
requirements in their jurisdictions.

The first full year of compliance will be 2021/22. This reflects the recognition that organisations will need time to reflect on the contents of 
the Code and can use 2020/21 to demonstrate how they are working towards compliance.

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/f/financial-management-code

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

Page 39

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-launches-local-government-financial-resilience-index
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/f/financial-management-code


5. NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

6

3. Prudential Property Investment, CIPFA, November 2019

Increasingly there has been a move towards investments in commercial properties, funded by borrowing, with the key driver of this activity 
appearing to be the generation of revenue. This publication provides guidance on making the assessments needed to ensure that such 
acquisitions are prudent and on the risks local authorities must manage when acquiring property. 

Statutory investment guidance from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) last year set out clearly that 
local authorities need to consider the long-term sustainability risk implicit in becoming too dependent on commercial income, or in taking 
out too much debt relative to net service expenditure.

The increased scale of investment in property was recognised by revisions to CIPFA's Prudential Code for Capital Finance and the
Treasury Management Code in 2017, but the growing amounts being borrowed for such a purpose are putting a strain on the creditability 
of the Prudential Framework and reinforce the need to ensure that such acquisitions are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

In addition to the core issue of borrowing in advance of need, which the Prudential Code has very clear provisions on, this publication 
provides guidance on the risk perspective to the practical assessment of prudence and affordability. Those risks could be very difficult to 
manage. Even when these issues are managed and there is reliance on investment income, a potential failure or a downturn of the 
property market may have a direct impact upon local services.

This publication considers such issues and the actions local authorities would need to take to mitigate against such risks.

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/prudential-property-investment

4.  Probity in planning: Advice for councillors and officers making planning decisions, LGA, December 2019

This 2019 guidance is an update to the 2013 version of the Local Government Association’s Probity in Planning. It clarifies how 
councillors can get involved in planning discussions on plan making and on applications, on behalf of their communities in a fair, impartial 
and transparent way. This guide has been written for officers and councillors involved in making planning decisions in their local authority 
and does not constitute legal advice.

https://www.local.gov.uk/probity-planning-advice-councillors-and-officers-making-planning-decisions

5.  Chief executives' 'must know' for children's services, LGA, December 2019

This is not intended to be a comprehensive blue-print for guaranteed results. Rather, it is intended to be a clear summary guide for chief 
executives, showing how to avoid some of the more obvious and dangerous errors and challenges involved in leading one of the most 
sensitive, expensive and high-risk areas of local government.

Key messages stated in the publication include:

• Together with the director of children’s services, the lead member for children’s services, and the leader or mayor, the chief executive 
has a key leadership role across the council and working with other local agencies to improve outcomes for children and young people. 
This strategic ‘quartet’ of political and officer leadership is fundamental to effectiveness and sustained improvement. It is the role of the 
chief executive, as the most senior professional concerned, to ensure the quartet is at least functional, at best, collectively inspirational 
and transformational.

• While the director of children’s services and lead member have statutory responsibilities for delivering effective children’s services and 
providing corporate leadership to champion the needs and improved outcomes for children and young people, the chief executive has a 
crucial role to ensure the whole council supports children and young people and enables the director to fulfil their role. The chief 
executive also plays the fundamental role in the effective professional oversight and line management of the director of children’s 
services.

• Due to the complex nature of running a council, and the challenge of balancing workload pressures, chief executives might not have the 
time to develop an in-depth understanding of the ongoing performance of complex services. They instead must establish a system of 
delegated responsibility and performance reporting in order to fulfil their, and the council’s obligations. Being in the chief executive 
position brings with it particular risks and challenges, especially when that complex service is children and young people, where the 
risks are high and the cost of failure can be profound, yet the signals of deteriorating performance may at best be opaque.

https://www.local.gov.uk/chief-executives-must-know-childrens-services

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

Page 40

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/prudential-property-investment
https://www.local.gov.uk/probity-planning-advice-councillors-and-officers-making-planning-decisions
https://www.local.gov.uk/chief-executives-must-know-childrens-services


5. NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

7

6. A Councillor’s guide to procurement, 2019 edition, LGA, October 2019

The LGA worked closely with councils to develop the National Procurement Strategy 2018 and a toolkit that enables councils to set their 
own objectives and measure their own progress. 

The National Procurement Strategy puts the councillor role front and centre and this guide has been produced specifically with councillors 
in mind. It looks at the roles councillors play – both executive members and those engaged in overview and scrutiny work – and provides 
hints and tips on how to get the best out of procurement and contract management. Just as in the national strategy, the focus is on 
delivering council objectives. Councillors do not need to be procurement professionals but they do need to be able to ask the right 
questions, including: 

• What is the procurement process and why do major procurements in local government fail?

• What are the role and responsibilities of a councillor?

• How is social value delivered under the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 and more generally?

https://www.local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-procurement-2019-edition

7.  Reaching out, LGA, October 2019

This guide outlines the current loneliness policy context, uses a range of case studies to demonstrate effective local delivery models 
working in practice, and provides useful checklists and tips on how to measure and evaluate outputs.

https://www.local.gov.uk/reaching-out

8.  A Councillor’s guide to digital connectivity, LGA, October 2019

This guide is structured to provide councillors with key information on digital connectivity. It explores the main issues and challenges 
facing local areas. 

https://www.local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-digital-connectivity-0

9.  Annual Transparency Report, Mazars, December 2019

Mazars produces an annual transparency report, setting out the steps we take to enhance the quality of our audit work and ensure that 
quality is consistent across the firm. The report includes: 

• Public Interest Committee Report; 

• UK Governance Council Report; 

• Inspiring Stakeholder Confidence in Audit Quality (including quality monitoring and audit quality indicators); 

• Our risks; and

• Structure, Leadership and Governance. 

Link to the latest report issued in December 2019 is set out below. 

https://www.mazars.co.uk/Home/About-us/Corporate-publications/Transparency-reports/Mazars-UK-Transparency-Report-2018-2019

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

Page 41

https://www.local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-procurement-2019-edition
https://www.local.gov.uk/reaching-out
https://www.local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-digital-connectivity-0
https://www.mazars.co.uk/Home/About-us/Corporate-publications/Transparency-reports/Mazars-UK-Transparency-Report-2018-2019


5. NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

8

10. Mazars’ response to the Brydon Review, Mazars, December 2019

The Brydon Review is one of four key reviews into the scope and quality of audit, namely: 

• Competition and Market’s Authority (CMA): resilience and competition in the audit market; 

• Kingman’s Review (review of the Financial Reporting Council and regulatory oversight); 

• The Brydon Review (tone and aspirations for the future of the industry); and

• The Redmond Review (quality of local authority financial reporting and external audit). 

The Brydon Review contains various recommendations and essentially recommends a major overhaul of audit which would see the 
creation of a separate ‘corporate auditing profession’, greater focus on fraud detection during audits, and the replacement of the ‘true and 
fair’ concept, with a greater focus on going concern. 

Mazars’ response to the latest Brydon Review report issued in December 2019 is detailed per the link below. 

https://www.mazars.co.uk/Home/News-Events/Latest-news/Mazars-response-to-the-Brydon-report

Link to the Brydon Review

Published in December 2019, focusing on the quality and effectiveness of audit. 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-quality-and-effectiveness-of-audit-independent-review

Link to the Kingman’s Review

Published in December 2018, this review recommended the replacement of the Financial Reporting Council with a new independent
statutory regulator, accountable to Parliament. The new regulator will be called the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA).  

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/independent-review-of-the-financial-reporting-council-frc-launches-report

Link to the Redmond Review

At the time of writing this report, the outcome from the Redmond Review has not been published. 

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-call-for-views

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

Page 42

https://www.mazars.co.uk/Home/News-Events/Latest-news/Mazars-response-to-the-Brydon-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-quality-and-effectiveness-of-audit-independent-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/independent-review-of-the-financial-reporting-council-frc-launches-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-call-for-views


Director: Karen Murray

Phone: 0161 238 9248

Mobile: 07721 234 043

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

Senior Manager: Chris Whittingham

Phone: (0) 151 2372255 
Mobile: 07909 982497
Email:  chris.Whittingham@mazars.gov.uk

CONTACT

Page 43

mailto:Karen.murray@mazars.co.uk
mailto:chris.Whittingham@mazars.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.9f

REPORT OF THE 

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER & HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

TO AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE

ON WEDNESDAY 22nd JANUARY 2020

TITLE: Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Interim Report 2019/20

RECOMMENDATIONS: Members are asked to note the contents of the 
report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The purpose of this report is to inform members 
of activity to manage the risk of fraud, bribery or corruption during 2019/20.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
 Audit & Accounts Committee reports

 CIPFA Counter Fraud Code of Practice

 Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 2016-2019 Strategy (CIPFA)

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS:  N/A

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy 
Statement and Strategy 

Page 45

Agenda Item 10f



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A  

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: The risk of asset misappropriation applies to 
virtually all council services.  A fraud risk assessment has been carried out by 
Internal Audit and the Counter Fraud Unit and used to inform the resources 
applied to anti-fraud work.  Significant fraud risks identified during the year 
would be considered for inclusion in the council’s Annual Governance 
Statement.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Melinda Edwards Principal Lawyer

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority 
to make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs 
and to secure that one of their officers has responsibility for the administration 
of those affairs. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also require 
authorities to ensure that they have a sound system of internal control which: 

(a)  facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its 
aims and objectives;

(b)  ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is 
effective; and

(c)  includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.

A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management control and governance processes, 
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.

In that regard, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (April 2017) 
reiterates that an organisation’s internal audit activity must evaluate the 
potential for the occurrence of fraud and how the organisation manages fraud 
risk. Fraud is defined in the Standards as “any illegal act characterised by 
deceit, concealment or violation of trust – perpetrated by parties and 
organisations to obtain money, property or services; to avoid payment or loss 
of services; or to secure personal or business advantage.”

Further, when the chief audit executive reports periodically on the internal 
audit activity’s purpose, authority and performance relative to its plan, such 
reporting must include significant risk and control issues, including fraud risks.

Accordingly, the briefing note updates members of the Audit and Accounts 
Committee as to the work to counter fraud, bribery and corruption undertaken 
by the council, including the Corporate Fraud Team and the Internal Audit 
team during 2019/20. 

Page 46



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Jean Gleave Head of Internal 
Audit
Effective anti-fraud procedures can have a positive impact on the council’s 
financial position, through recovery of overpayments or financial penalties 
imposed on fraudsters. These outcomes are quantified and reported back to 
the Audit and Accounts Committee.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: Jean Gleave, Head of Internal Audit.   TEL NO: Ex 6651

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A

Page 47



INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES

COUNTER-FRAUD, BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION 

INTERIM REPORT 

FOR

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL

2019/20

Page 48



Report Content

                                                                      Page
1. Purpose of the report

                                                                                                
1

2. Background and key issues                                                                          1

3. Summary of recent anti-fraud work and investigations carried out         
                                                                                                        

3

4. Development of the Counter Fraud Unit   
                                                      

5

5. Conclusion 7

 

Page 49



1

1. Purpose of the report 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to:

 Provide members of the Committee with an update of the work being done by 
the council (including the Counter Fraud Unit) to minimise the risk of fraud, 
bribery and corruption.

 Provide assurance that the council’s assets are being safeguarded and that 
resources are directed to legitimate areas of activity.

 Highlight any significant investigations or current fraud risks affecting the council.

2. Background and Key Issues

2.1 It is estimated that fraud costs local government over £2 billion each year. The 
council has a zero tolerance approach to fraud and work is carried out across a 
number of departments to identify, investigate and prevent fraud. The Audit & 
Accounts Committee now receives two reports a year summarising this work and 
highlighting any significant fraud risks faced by the council.

The national picture on fraud
2.2 The CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre (CFC) runs an annual survey of local authorities (the 

Counter Fraud and Corruption Tracker), to capture national activity and identify key risks 
and emerging trends. The results for 2018-19 are summarised below:

National 
17-18

National 
18-19

Salford 
17-18

Salford 
18-19

Total number of cases 82,736 70,829 118 129
Total value of cases £302m £253m £139k £354k
Council Tax £26.3m £30.6m £50k £98k
Housing £216.1m £135.6m - £186k
Other £59.6m £86.8m £89k £70k

2.3 The national figures show that housing remains the biggest area of fraud risk for 
local authorities in terms of total value (e.g. from illegal sub-letting, fraudulent Right 
to Buy applications), although the value of detected fraud fell significantly last year.  

2.4 Council tax remains the area with the largest number of cases, although the 
average value per case is low (£547 nationally). The average value of these cases 
is increasing year on year, however, in line with the increasing length of time since 
Council Tax Support was introduced (and therefore the length of time that a fraud 
may have been committed). The other major fraud area by volume is disabled 
parking (Blue Badge) abuse.

2.5 Other types of fraud have increased in value, mainly in the areas of adult social 
care and procurement. 

2.6 Other key messages from the survey were:

Page 50



2

 Procurement, adult social care and council tax single person discount are 
perceived as the three greatest fraud risk areas (unchanged from previous two 
years).

 The main issue that respondents considered needed to be addressed was the 
lack of capacity to deal with fraud risks. Better data sharing and effective fraud 
risk management were the other key issues.

 The estimated value and volume of insurance fraud cases more than doubled 
from the previous year. These are a mix of high value false employer liability 
claims and frequent, low value public liability claims (e.g. “slips and trips”).  

 There has been a decrease in the percentage of authorities who responded to 
the survey who do not have a dedicated counter fraud service (40%, down from 
49% in 2017-18), and an increase in the percentage of authorities in shared 
counter fraud service arrangements (19%, up from 14%).

Fraud risk assessment
2.7 The findings from the Counter Fraud and Corruption Tracker survey are used to 

review and revise Salford’s own fraud risk assessment, which is used to inform the 
workplan for the Counter Fraud Unit (CFU). The risk assessment was refreshed in 
2018 and shared with senior managers. The current “top ten” fraud risks in Salford 
have been identified as follows. To provide some context, these are compared with 
the top ten recorded frauds (by value) identified in the CFC survey:

Salford – Top Ten fraud risks CFC survey – top ten identified 
frauds (by value)

1 Council Tax Support Housing Frauds

2 Council Tax Single Person 
Discount

Council Tax Frauds

3 Client finances Procurement

4 Direct payments Adult Social Care

5 Procurement fraud – pre-contract Insurance

6 Procurement fraud – post-contract Payroll

7 Cyber fraud Business Rates

8 Housing tenancy School Transport

9 Corruption Mandate Fraud

10 Business rates Disabled Parking Concession

Note: the fraud risk assessment is based on a number of factors, including value of 
transactions and known risks nationally, and does not necessarily reflect the 
perceived actual prevalence of any particular type of fraud in Salford. 

Page 51



3

2.8 The fraud risk assessment will be refreshed later in the year, using a fraud risk 
diagnostic developed by the Counter Fraud Unit. This will be issued to all service 
managers, in order to obtain a more detailed view of the perceived fraud risks in 
the council.

3. Summary of recent anti-fraud work and investigations carried out
Council Tax Support / Single Person Discount

3.1 For the year to date, the activity for the Counter Fraud Unit is as follows:

Cases closed (year to date) 121
Cases open / pending (at 02/12/19) 81

Number Value
Council Tax Support
Overpayments recovered 15 £ 19,109
Notional savings made 15 £ 11,871
Council Tax Benefits / Single Person 
Discount / Housing Benefit
Overpayments recovered 25 £ 14,950
Notional savings made 37 £ 17,464
Total overpayments recovered 40 £ 34,059
Total notional savings made 52 £ 29,335

Note: “Notional savings” represent an estimated amount of benefit / discount that a 
claimant could have received had the claim not been investigated.  The amount is 
calculated using a nationally agreed formula.

3.2 The Revenues and Benefits service have implemented an online system for 
customers to confirm their continuing entitlement to Single Person Discount. Those 
who do not respond within a given time have their discount cancelled, and the 
Counter Fraud Unit investigates some of these cases to identify any potential fraud.  

3.3 The Council Tax figures for the year to date are lower than at the same time last 
year, for a number of reasons:

 Fewer referrals have involved Council Tax Support, which usually delivers a 
higher value outcome than cases involving Single Person Discount, or other 
Council Tax benefits

 More time has been spent this year investigating matches arising from the 
National Fraud Initiative main exercise, which have not generated a significant 
number of positive outcomes. There have also been new matches to investigate 
involving HMRC data (see 3.11 below) which have not yet progressed to the 
stage where positive outcomes have been recorded.

Business Rates
3.4 The Counter Fraud Unit carried out an exercise in July 2019, using open source 

data to identify any potential cases where businesses may be claiming Small 

Page 52



4

Business Rate Relief in more than one local authority area, where the premises’ 
total rateable values exceeded the value attracting Relief. The exercise did not 
identify any potential cases in Salford, which provided some assurance over 
existing controls: consideration will be given to ways in which the data matching 
could be improved in the future, to increase the accuracy of the checks. 

Blue Badges
2.9 The Counter Fraud Unit has met with the Parking Enforcement team to agree a 

blue badge amnesty and active enforcement exercise, to be carried out in early 
2020. This will cover both abuse and misuse of blue badges, with planned 
outcomes including confiscation, return to rightful owner, issue of fine or 
prosecution.  

2.10 The exercise will be based on a similar successful scheme currently carried out in 
Warrington by the same enforcement company (NSL). The Unit is working with 
NSL and the Parking Enforcement Team to identify the high risk areas that will be 
the focus of initial enforcement: feedback from NSL has suggested that this could 
generate a significant number of referrals. The exercise will aim to safeguard 
vulnerable individuals with rightful access to restricted parking.

Social care / Direct Payments
2.11 Social care contributions and the use of Direct Payments have been identified as 

significant fraud risk areas. The Counter Fraud Unit has met with staff from the 
council and Salford Together at Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust to discuss 
how to improve awareness of financial risks amongst social workers and 
managers. Initial training was provided to Direct Payments and Financial 
Assessment staff at Salford Together and further consultation is being carried out 
in order to roll out financial safeguarding training more widely.

Tenancy Fraud
2.12 The Counter Fraud Unit works closely with local Housing Associations to share 

information that may assist in identifying either Right to Buy or tenancy fraud (e.g. 
illegal sub-letting), or claims for council benefits that have been made using 
incorrect information, for example on residency or earnings / capital. In addition to 
the recovery of council tax overpayments, this has generated a number of positive 
outcomes for the Housing Associations, as follows:

 One tenancy terminated on the basis that the tenant was no longer living there 
(Salix).

 Two tenancies terminated on the basis of unlawful sub-letting (1x Pendleton 
Together, 1x Guinness).

In all cases, the tenancies were surrendered without need of additional legal action 
by the Housing Associations.

2.13 This activity fits with the council’s objectives around housing by helping to ensure 
that social housing is only allocated to those who are eligible under the allocations 
scheme. The Cabinet Office also suggest that there is a notional benefit to the 
owner of the housing stock of £93,000 per property recovered as a result of non-
residence or unlawful sub-letting. This is based on an average four year fraudulent 
tenancy, including temporary accommodation for genuine applicants; legal costs to 

Page 53



5

recover property; re-let cost; and rent foregone during the void period between 
tenancies. Based on these figures, the above cases have delivered a notional 
outcome of £279,000 for the relevant Housing Associations.

National Fraud Initiative
2.14 The full NFI data matching exercise is carried out every two years. This covers: 

Council Tax benefits and Single Person Discounts; payroll; creditor payments; 
insurances; blue badges; personal budgets; parking permits; and licences. The 
matches for the full 2018-19 exercise were released in January 2019 and high 
priority matches are currently being investigated. Any positive outcomes from these 
matches have been included in the table above.

2.15 In August 2019, the Cabinet Office released further data matches as part of a pilot 
exercise using HMRC earnings data against a number of NFI datasets. The pilot 
utilises HMRC data relating to:

 earnings and employment from real time information and self-assessment;
 household composition; and
 property ownership

2.16 The data has been matched against the following datasets:

 Council Tax Reduction Scheme; 
 Residential Care Homes; 
 Right to Buy; 
 Personal Budgets; and 
 Council Tax Single Person Discount

2.17 Early indications from investigation of the matches suggests that this data could 
provide a number of positive outcomes: these will be included in the next fraud 
progress report.

2.18 The next annual exercise to match electoral register data against Council Tax 
single person discount claims will take place in January 2020. The CFU will assess 
the outcomes from all matches and prioritise those for further investigation. 
Outcomes from this match will be investigated alongside the proactive work being 
carried out by Revenues and Benefits (as per para 3.2 above).  

Joint Working with DWP
2.19 The council commenced joint working arrangements with the DWP in April 2019, 

on cases involving both Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support. The CFU has 
made a number of referrals to DWP of cases that may be taken forward as joint 
investigations, but the DWP’s current focus on dealing with the problems relating to 
Universal Credit advance payments has meant that there has been little significant 
progress to date on joint working.

Significant Investigations
2.20 In 2019-20 to date ten internal referrals have been formally investigated by Internal 

Audit and HR, the majority coming from Honesty Action forms. No further action 
has been taken in six cases as no evidence was obtained on further investigation 

Page 54



6

to support the allegations made, with management action being taken in one case; 
one case has been dealt with by the bank and two are currently under 
investigation.

4. Development of the Counter Fraud Unit
1.1. Work continues to develop the effectiveness of the CFU, and to maximise the 

benefit of the joint working arrangement with Warrington Borough Council.  The 
paragraphs below summarise this work for the year to date.

Government Counter Fraud Profession
1.2. The Government Counter Fraud Profession was launched by the Cabinet Office in 

October 2018 as one of the recognised professions within the Civil Service. It 
provides a structure for counter fraud specialists to develop their career across 
central government, supported by a set of consistent Professional Standards and 
Competencies. It will be supported by an online Professional Skills Platform, 
enabling members to register, self-assess against Standards and Competencies 
and log CPD activities.

1.3. The government has now expressed a desire to give local government counter 
fraud staff the opportunity to join the Profession. To facilitate this process, initial 
applications will be made by groups of local authorities on behalf of their counter 
fraud staff. The Audit and Counter Fraud Manager is currently leading one of the 
two pilots, on behalf of a number of North West authorities: the aim is to have made 
an application for membership by the end of the current financial year.

1.4. Membership of the Profession will bring significant benefits to CFU staff in terms of 
skills development and networking. It will also encourage recruitment and retention 
by demonstrating a commitment from the authority to supporting its counter fraud 
resource. In order to ensure that the council has the appropriate processes in place 
to meet the entry requirements of the Profession, all counter fraud policies and 
procedures are currently being reviewed and amended accordingly.

Protecting those at risk from financial fraud and abuse
1.5. There is increasing recognition at a national level of the risks posed to vulnerable 

members of society from financial abuse. These are people who may lack the 
confidence or capability to manage their personal finances. They can be at 
increased risk of:

 Unauthorised access to their bank accounts by third parties
 Financial abuse by someone in a position of trust with them, including friends, 

family or carers
 Online scams, doorstep crime, postal fraud

1.6. The Audit and Counter Fraud Manager now sits on the Home Office’s Joint Fraud 
Taskforce (JFT) Stakeholder Group, which brings together banks and other financial 
institutions, law enforcement agencies and central and local government in order to 
develop a co-ordinated approach to identifying and preventing these risks. 
Outcomes from the Group’s work will be used to strengthen the council’s processes 
for protecting those most at risk of financial abuse in Salford.

Page 55



7

1.7. The JFT is currently focusing on two main areas:

 Financial fraud against individuals and SMEs
 The links between economic crime and Serious Organised Crime Groups

The Home Office is keen to improve the level of co-operation and intelligence-
sharing between public and private sector bodies in these areas, and the JFT is 
seen as a key vehicle for this. The meetings to date have emphasised the value of 
the intelligence that local government can provide, from services such as Public 
Protection, Social Care and Counter Fraud, and the scope for closer working with 
financial services providers and local and regional Police Economic Crime Units.

Other Work
1.8. Other development work carried out by the Unit during the year has included:

 Staff from the CFU have attended various training and personal development 
events, covering areas such as direct payments, protecting the vulnerable, and 
the use of social media in investigations

 Regular joint team meetings are held to share information and best practice 
between the two councils

 Staff rotate attendance at regional counter fraud group meetings and feed back 
to the other members of the Unit

 The Audit and Counter Fraud Manager sits on the Fighting Fraud and Corruption 
Locally Oversight Board (which has responsibility for the local government 
counter fraud strategy) and is currently working with CIPFA on a refresh of the 
strategy, and the development of counter fraud standards for local government.

5. Conclusion 
1.1. The wide range of the activities and incidents covered in this report highlights the 

extent to which fraud and error exist as risks to the achievement of the council’s 
objectives and the degree to which these risks can change over time. There are 
programmes of work in place across the council to identify and investigate fraud 
risks and there is effective communication between the services involved. The 
establishment of the Corporate Counter Fraud Unit has ensured that adequate 
resource is given to this work, and has increased the council’s capacity to carry out 
proactive as well as reactive counter fraud activity.

1.2. This will enable members to comply with International Auditing Standards and will 
inform the debate at the end of the year on the compilation of the council’s Annual 
Governance Statement.

Page 56



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.9g

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO ACCOUNTS & AUDIT COMMITTEE

ON 22nd JANUARY 2020

TITLE: Urban Vision – overview of the transition of services, budget planning and workforce 
considerations

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That Accounts & Audit Committee note:

1. A joint programme is underway to plan for a smooth transition with minimal disruption
2. The internal council programme is underway to ensure operational readiness from 1 

February 2020
3. That work continues to identify strategic support
4. Budget planning considerations and savings have been identified
5. Workforce considerations are identified through the programme, both for existing 

council employees seconded into Urban Vision and those who will be in scope to TUPE 
transfer

6. There is still a resource intensive programme to work towards to ensure smooth 
transfer of services, and continued improvements to services on return

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

In preparation for services at Urban Vision coming back to the council from 1 February 2020, 
Salford City Council is delivering a transition programme to ensure an effective transfer of 
service, and that we are ready to receive and operate the service with minimal disruption. 
There are three distinct work streams in the programme:

 Managing the transfer and closing the UV contract: 
 SCC readiness to run the services: 
 Procurement of a Strategic Partner: 

Page 57

Agenda Item 10g



2

Whilst bringing the service and circa 300 staff back in house provides the Council with many 
opportunities and total control, this also exposes the Council to a number of risks which are 
being carefully managed.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: n/a

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS:

1.0 Background

1.1 Urban Vision was formed in 2005 as a Joint Venture (JV) between Salford City Council, 
Capita and Galliford Try. This joint venture is a first of its kind in the UK, the partnership 
harnesses the expert skills and experience from both the public and private sectors.

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

In May 2018, the City Mayor published a decision to bring the services back in house 
following the end of the contract.

There are four key service areas provided by the JV through a contract, these services 
are;

 - Regulatory Services (Development and Building Control)
 - Property Services
 - Highways Engineering and Network Managent
 - Construction Services

Since 2018, a programme team have been brought together to work with Urban Vision 
and coordinate an internal team to ensure a smooth transition and that Salford City 
Council are operationally ready to deliver services from 1st February 2020.

To provide clear direction and delivery of an orderly transition a governance structure 
has been established. All work streams are overseen by the “Core Group” chaired by 
Strategic Director for Place as the SRO for the whole programme. The group also has 
membership from finance, legal, Place and other areas of the council as required.  

Page 58



3

1.6

1.7

2.0

Highlight reports including escalation of risks and issues are made from the 
programme team and workstream leads to the Core Group, based on a plan of around 
350 individual tasks. A number of key work streams for operational readiness are led 
by officers in Service Reform, members of the programme team also attend the 
Service Reform SLT on a monthly basis to review progress.

The figure below provides a brief snapshot of how the teams are structured across the 
council and who is leading on which area. In order to swiftly deal with any escalated 
commercial issues with Urban Vision, Strategic Director for Place is meeting the 
Managing Director of Capita on a monthly basis. 

Key updates

2.1 A major delivery programme is in place to support a smooth and seamless transition 
with minimal disruption to staff and customers. 

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

A significant amount of work is being undertaken across Place and Service Reform to 
ensure the council is ready to operate returning services from day one.

A governance structure is in place internally to monitor progress and escalate risks and 
issues to ensure these are resolved and do not negatively impact the transition

Joint governance is in place, with a plan for exit agreed which is progressing well.

Savings to the council have been identified, currently estimated at £1.23m

Page 59



4

2.6 Continued effort is required from all areas of the programme to deliver the required 
activities to the transition date to ensure the smooth transition with minimal 
disruption to operational services after the 31 January 2020.

3.0 Recommendations 

3.1 That Accounts & Audit Committee note:

1. A joint programme is underway to plan for a smooth transition with minimal 
disruption

2. The internal council programme is underway to ensure operational readiness 
from 1 February 2020

3. That work continues to identify strategic support
4. Budget planning considerations and savings have been identified
5. Workforce considerations are identified through the programme, both for 

existing council employees seconded into Urban Vision and those who will be in 
scope to TUPE transfer

6. There is still a resource intensive programme to work towards to ensure smooth 
transfer of services

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: n/a

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: n/a

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium

There are a number of risks associated with the programme that are being carefully managed 
to ensure these are reviewed, minimised and managed appropriately through a programme 
risk register.
Independent assurance on the transition arrangements was sought from internal audit, who 
undertook a review and have reported a high level of assurance, which members will have 
received within their pack of committee summary reports.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor – 0161 219 
6323

Page 60



5

The report reflects the fact that the contractual arrangement with UV, embodied in the 
Development Services Partnering Agreement (DSPA) and entered into by the Council and UV 
as a Joint Venture Company on 31st January 2005 is due to expire (following an extension) on 
31st January 2020. The Council has previously resolved to bring the services and associated staff 
members back in-house to deliver them.

The DSPA was not particularly well drafted and is lacking in several respects, including detailed 
exit provisions, which necessitated the Council and UV setting up the project teams referred to 
in the body of the report to work together to ensure as smooth a transition as possible of the 
services, functions, and staff to the Council.

As part of the transition process, the Council has successfully agreed and entered into various 
agreements with UV, such as a Heads of Terms agreement to reflect the principles of transition, 
a settlement agreement to capture outstanding commercial legacy issues, a Deed of variation 
to address GDPR requirements, and agreeing respective exit obligations and requirements.

Legal Services has been involved throughout the transition process and in the preparation of 
all these documents, and will continue to advise and assist, such as in the preparation of the 
Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) which is being developed jointly with UV/Capita. The BTA 
is designed to provide clarity and certainty on transferring assets/liabilities (including staff), any 
consideration, and how/when it will be paid, and to capture the arrangements/agreements 
between the Council and UV, to take effect at the point of transition. Legal are also assisting 
with contracting arrangements in the meantime, such as novating contracts where appropriate, 
looking at new contracting arrangements, and procurement of new contractors to ensure 
operational continuity. 

Legal is working closely with colleagues both on the internal transition project team, and the 
Joint Transition Group with colleagues from UV/Capita/Galliford Try to assist in working to 
ensure a smooth transition for the services to be delivered, for staff who shall return as 
secondees, and for staff who are in scope to transfer to the Council under TUPE as part of the 
transition process.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Paul Hutchings, Strategic Finance 
Manager x2574

Financial advice has been provided by the finance team throughout the process.  A detailed 
costing model has been worked through to give an accurate picture of the anticipated costs 
of services ongoing.  This piece of work has allowed for a £1.230m savings to be put forward 
as part of the 2020/21 budget process with further work ongoing to establish whether any 
savings could be made in future years.

Page 61



6

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Christine Flisk, Strategic Finance 
Manager x2574

Financial advice has been provided by the finance team throughout the process.  A detailed 
costing model has been worked through to give an accurate picture of the anticipated costs 
of services ongoing.  This piece of work has allowed for a £1.230m savings to be put forward 
as part of the 2020/21 budget process with further work ongoing to establish whether any 
savings could be made in future years.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Workforce considerations contained in the report. 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Nina Howells, Commercial 
Project Manager x2834

Whilst there aren’t any direct implications through this report as the transition is a process, 
going forward the council will have greater control over how services are delivered and will be 
able to give further weight to climate change issues and the objectives of the Greater 
Manchester Five Year Environment Plan.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: n/a

CONTACT OFFICER: Shoaib Mohammad TEL NO: 779 6194

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 62



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.10

REPORT OF THE 

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER & HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE

ON WEDNESDAY 22nd JANUARY 2020

TITLE: Internal Audit Progress Report (October 2019 to January 2020)

RECOMMENDATIONS: Members are requested to consider the contents of the 
report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the 
resources utilised by Internal Audit during 2019/20, the activities undertaken in the 
reporting period, and the status of work currently being undertaken.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 Audit & Accounts Committee reports 
 Internal Audit’s management information systems

KEY DECISION: No

DETAILS: N/A

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A

Page 63

Agenda Item 11



2

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Internal audit projects are managed within the Unit’s risk 
based audit protocols aimed at giving assurance regarding the management of the 
City Council’s key business risks.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Supplied by: Melinda Edwards Principal 
Solicitor

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make 
arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and to secure that 
one of their officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. The 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also require authorities to ensure that they 
have a sound system of internal control which:
(a) facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims 

and objectives;
(b) ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is 

effective; and
(c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.

A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.

In that regard, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (CIPFA/IIA) requires an 
authority’s chief audit executive to develop and maintain a quality assurance and 
improvement programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit activity. The 
quality assurance and improvement programme must include both internal and 
external assessments. Internal assessments include the ongoing monitoring of the 
performance of the internal audit activity. 

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the resources utilised by Internal 
Audit between October 2019 and January 2020, the activities undertaken in the 
reporting period, and the status of work currently being undertaken.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Jean Gleave Head of Internal Audit

The audit plan is funded from within the revenue budget and there are no additional 
financial demands resulting from this report.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Christine Flisk, Procurement 
Manager. 
There are no known procurement implications with this report.

Page 64



3

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Catherine Sharples HR Manager

There are no known HR implications arising from this report.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: None

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: David Smith, Internal Audit Manager      TEL NO: Ex 6969

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A

Page 65



Internal Audit Progress Report – 22nd January 2020    

1

INTRODUCTION
This report provides Members of the Audit & Accounts Committee with details of the 
resources utilised by Internal Audit and outcomes, including work reported in this period, 
work currently being undertaken and new work commenced.
Appendix 1 provides details of the progress and status of the 2019/20 plan / audit reviews.  
Internal Audit continues to respond to matters requiring special investigations. 

Audits Completed and Reports Issued

Table 1 below summarises the eleven audits that have been finalised since the last meeting 
of the Audit and Accounts Committee, and the corresponding number of agreed actions and 
overall level of assurance provided for each of those audits.
Summary Reports have been provided to Committee Members for each of these reviews. 

Table 1: Reports Issued 

Number of agreed actions and priority
Audit    

Critical High Medium Low Total
Level of 

Assurance 

James Brindley Primary School - - 2 - 2 High

Business Rates - - 1 - 1 High

UV Transition (Programme 
Governance) - - - - - High

Out of Borough Placements 
(Placement Finding Team) - - 5 - 5 Satisfactory

Payroll (Starters & Leavers) - 1 4 - 5 Satisfactory

Ellenbrook Community Primary 
School - 1 3 2 6 Satisfactory

Payroll (Timesheets) - 1 1 - 2 Satisfactory

Helping Families (GM Troubled 
Families Programme) - - 3 - 3 Satisfactory

Regulatory Avoidance by 
Businesses - 1 2 - 3 Satisfactory

Summerville Primary School - 1 11 2 14 Satisfactory

Moorfield Community Primary 
School - 5 12 2 19 Limited

Total:  - 10 44 6 60

The level of assurance given to each audit is a balanced judgement based upon the 
established system of controls, the subject’s approach to risk management, and the nature 
of any recommendations made and actions agreed. (See Appendix 2 for explanations of 
the different levels of assurance).
Actions are classified over the categories of critical, high, medium, and low. See Appendix 
3 for explanations of the different levels of priority.  

Page 66



Internal Audit Progress Report – 22nd January 2020    

2

The agreed actions are designed to improve the control environment and/or improve ‘value 
for money’ within the client’s area of responsibility and we are pleased to report that all of 
the actions made in this period have been agreed by management.
Our audit reports include an action plan that records the detail of our findings, the agreed 
action that management intend to take in response to these findings and the timescale to 
undertake such action. This provides a record that progress can be measured against when 
we undertake our Post Implementation Reviews or follow-up work.  

POST IMPLEMENTATION REVIEWS

Internal Audit undertakes Post Implementation Reviews (PIRs) of services or systems that 
have been subject to an audit. 
We have included information below summarising the two PIRs that have been finalised in 
this period. 
The information includes the number of agreed actions and the number of those actions 
now implemented or outstanding. It also provides an indication of the direction of travel 
regarding the overall level of assurance.  
More detailed Committee Summary reports have been provided to Committee Members for 
each of these ahead of this meeting. 
Alder Brook Pupil Referral Unit

Priority Direction of Travel
Actions

Critical High Medium Low Total Audit Indicative

Agreed - 3 15 2 20

Implemented - 3 11 1 15

Outstanding - 0 0 4 5

Limited  Satisfactory

It is noted that where action was outstanding, it was almost complete with the remaining 
elements pending approval of policy matters at the autumn governing body meeting. 

Adoption Allowances

Priority Direction of Travel
Actions

Critical High Medium Low Total Audit Indicative

Agreed - 3 - - -

Implemented - 3 - - -

Outstanding - 0 - - -

Limited N/A

Guidance notes:
 The timing of a PIR is determined by the agreed implementation dates, detailed within 

the original audit report, and is generally undertaken within six months of the audit.
 PIRs only confirm the action taken to resolve the issues highlighted within our report and 

does not check that the rest of the control framework remains as robust as it was at the 
time of our original review.

Page 67



Internal Audit Progress Report – 22nd January 2020    

3

 The PIR can take the form of an actual site visit by Internal Audit to verify the 
implementation of agreed recommendations or alternative follow-up, for example the 
client undertaking a self-assessment of implemented recommendations and reporting 
their outcomes to Internal Audit.

 The summaries include an indicative assurance ‘direction of travel’ following the Post 
Implementation Review. This provides a measure of the value added through the 
implementation of the agreed actions within our reports. It shows the level of assurance 
that we provided in our original report and the level that we expect we would now be 
able to provide if we undertook a full audit again. It takes into account the action taken 
to address matters raised in our original report. However, it should be noted that this is 
indicative only and may not reflect the actual current position.

OTHER WORK

This section details other work completed by the audit team during the period.

Grant Certification
We have completed the certification work for the following grant funding received by SCC. 

 Bus Subsidy Operators Grant 2018/19

Collaboration
 We have completed our annual work on the GM Troubled Families’ programme, known 

in Salford as ‘Helping Families’, where assurance is provided to GMCA by all ten GM 
local authorities’ audit teams regarding the use of devolved funding for the programme. 

 We are working with the Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) on our joint review to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the governance arrangements, systems and processes in 
place for the management and monitoring of the Best Value Programme.

 One of our Principal Auditors has joined the newly reformed North West Contract Audit 
Group. This is a sub group of the North West Heads of Internal Audit Group that has 
been tasked with enhancing the region’s approch to auditing in this field by sharing 
knowledge and ideas amongst the group. Salford already have leading representation 
on similar sub groups focused on Schools Audit and IT Audit. 

Planning
We have commenced work on developing the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan. Since the last 
meeting of this Committee, we have met with each of the Service Group’s leadership teams 
to update the on progress against this year’s plan and start developing next year’s plan.

Information Governance and Data Security
We continue to provide advice and consultative support to the council’s arrangements for 
information governance and its response to the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) 
inspection in March 2018. 

Page 68



Internal Audit Progress Report – 22nd January 2020    

4

Supporting Squads, Transformation and Change
Internal Audit is currently involved in two ‘squads’, providing consultancy advice or 
independent assurance as/when our input is appropriate.

 Pensions: Contribution payments to providers

 Payroll: Emergency payments process redesign

AUDIT WORK RECENTLY STARTED

Since the last meeting of the Audit and Accounts Committee, terms of reference have been 
finalised for the following audit work:

 Urban Vision Transition (Live Capital Projects)
The scope of the audit is restricted to the following control objectives:

- Reliable information systems are in place within the council and Urban Vision to 
support effective monitoring and reporting of live capital projects with respect to: 
o progress / stage of completion;
o financial information / budget position; and
o project risks.

- Processes are in place to provide management with a fair and transparent view on 
the financial sustainability for the remainder of each project.

  Grant certification
Work has commenced on certifying the following grant claims:

- Pothole Action Fund (2018/19)
- Flood Resilience Fund (2018/19)

 Schools
Appointments have been made in respect of the following school audits:
- North Walkden Primary School
- St Sebastian’s Primary School
- Willow Tree Primary School 
- St George’s CE Primary School

Page 69



Audit Plan 2019/20 – Progress     Appendix 1

5

Appendix 1: Audit Plan 2019/20

Audit / Activity Timing TOR   Reported Assurance Comments

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & RISK
Governance Arrangements / AGS Ongoing n/a

Risk Management and Assurance Framework Ongoing n/a

Information Governance (General Support) Ongoing n/a n/a n/a

Transformation, Change & Squads Support (General) Ongoing n/a n/a n/a

Business Continuity (bf) Ongoing 27/10/17 TBC TBC Staged review, shadowing implementation

Partnerships & Assurance Framework Q1-Q4 n/a n/a n/a  
CORE FINANCIAL SYSTEMS
Debt Recovery and Write-offs (bf) Q1 23/01/19 2805/19 High

Payroll Function (Starters & Leavers) (bf) Q1 20/08/18 09/12/19 Satisfactory

Business Rates (Service Redesign) (bf) Q2/Q3 13/08/19 05/11/19 High

Payroll Function (Timesheets) (bf) Q2/Q3 02/09/19 09/12/19 Satisfactory

Council Tax (Service Redesign) (bf) Q3/Q4 22/08/19 TBC TBC Draft Report

Payroll Function (Payovers) (bf) Q4 Planning

Main Accounting System (bf) Q4 Planning

Accounts Payable (Creditors) Q4 Planning

Housing Benefits (Service Redesign) (bf) Q4

Payroll Function (Payments) (bf) 2020/21

GRANTS & COMPLIANCE WORK
Local Authority Bus Subsidy (Revenue Grant) Q2 n/a 14/10/19 Validated

Greaves Trust Q3 n/a 29/10/19 Validated  

Empty Homes (Grant) TBC n/a n/a Validated  

Local Growth Fund Q3 n/a TBC TBC Drafting report

Pothole Action Fund Q3/4 n/a TBC TBC Fieldwork

P
age 70



Audit Plan 2019/20 – Progress     Appendix 1

6

Audit / Activity Timing TOR   Reported Assurance Comments

Flood Resilience Fund Q3/4 n/a TBC TBC Fieldwork

Cycle City Q4 n/a

SERVICE REFORM
Contract Management  Ongoing  n/a n/a n/a 

Pensions - Contribution Payments to Providers (bf) Q1 24/06/19 24/09/19 Satisfactory

Statutory Returns (Data Integrity and Resources) Q1 - - - Moved to 2020/21 due to service redesign

Corporate Complaints (bf) Q2/Q3 Moved to 2020/21 by SLT

Modern Slavery Q3 Moved to 2020/21 by SLT

Community Awards (Assurance to Sponsors) Q4 Cancelled by SLT – no longer required

Member Allowances / Payments 2020/21

Agency Workers 2020/21

Planning, Risk and Performance (bf) 2020/21 Potentially a joint review with the CCG. 
Developing public reporting/ transparency.

Information Technology
PCI Compliance Ongoing n/a n/a Pass Quarterly Compliance Scans  

Cyber Security (Detailed NIST) (bf) Q1 30/08/18 Draft TBC Draft report / almost ready to issue as final

Software Asset Management (bf) Q3/4 18/02/19 TBC TBC Fieldwork

Information Security Management Standard (ISMS) Q2/3 n/a 08/10/19 Pass  

Social care application replacement (bf) Ongoing n/a n/a n/a On-going consultative role

Social care application replacement (Project 
Governance & Risk management) Q4 Planning / Reactive review linked to the above 

work

Disaster Recovery (bf) Ongoing n/a Providing on-going consultative support 
surrounding various options with DR

IT Strategy (bf) Ongoing n/a New strategy is in development – Providing 
consultative support where needed

P
age 71



Audit Plan 2019/20 – Progress     Appendix 1

7

Audit / Activity Timing TOR   Reported Assurance Comments

Incident Management Ongoing n/a New system being built in house – Providing 
consultative support where needed

IT Change Management Ongoing n/a New system being built in house – Providing 
consultative support where needed

New Service Desk Application Ongoing n/a New system being built in house – Providing 
consultative support where needed

SAP Security Management (bf) TBC Pending IT Services’ role based review.

PLACE
Citywide – Inventory Management PIR (bf) Q1 n/a 04/06/19 High *

Regulatory Avoidance by Businesses (bf) Q1 06/02/19 20/11/19 Satisfactory  

Carbon Reduction Commitment 2018-19 Q2 n/a 26/07/19 High Annual review

UV Transition Programme (Programme Governance) Q3 30/09/19 05/12/19 High

CCTV Control Room (ISO Compliance) Q1 n/a 04/07/19 Validated  

SCL Client Side Function Q1 TBC TBC TBC Fieldwork

Major Projects : UV Transition Programme (Capital 
Schemes Handover – Budgets/Project Completion) Q3 02/12/19 TBC TBC Fieldwork

Empty Homes (Processes) Q4 Planning

Mercury Abatement Regulations Q4 n/a Cancelled – No longer Necessary

UV Profit Share TBC Cancelled – No longer Necessary

Section 106 Agreements 2020/21 Possibly start up in Q4 2019/20

PEOPLE
SEN - Direct Payments & Personal Budgets (bf) Q2/Q3 29/10/18 06/08/19 Satisfactory

Out of Borough Placements (bf) Q3/Q4 11/02/19 10/12/19 Satisfactory

Salford Assist (bf) Q4 06/03/19 19/08/19 High

Helping Families (Troubled Families) Q3 n/a 12/12/19 High

Homelessness (linked to Place) (bf) Q3/Q4 18/01/19 TBC TBC Fieldwork

P
age 72



Audit Plan 2019/20 – Progress     Appendix 1

8

Audit / Activity Timing TOR   Reported Assurance Comments

Personal Budgets  Q2 20/08/19 TBC TBC Fieldwork

Pupil Modelling and Planning (bf) Q4 Draft Fieldwork

Integrated Care – Best Value Programme Q3/4 12/09/19 TBC TBC Fieldwork

PIR Adoption Allowances Q3 n/a 14/01/20 n/a

SEND - High Needs / Transition (bf) Q2/Q3 Planning / Drafting TOR

Client Charging Policy (SCC/Integrated Care) (bf) Q2/Q3 Planning / Drafting TOR

Use of Section 17 Funds Q4 Planning

Community Grants 2020/21

Youth Offending Services 2020/21

PEOPLE (Establishments)

School Governance Support / Development Ongoing n/a n/a n/a

Schools’ Financial Value Statements (SFVS) Q4 n/a n/a n/a

Children’s Homes Q1-Q4 n/a n/a n/a Two visits planned for Q4

New Broadwalk PRU Q1 n/a 28/06/19 Satisfactory  

PIR Alder Brook Pupil Referral Unit Q3 n/a 23/10/19 Satisfactory *

Lark Hill Primary School Q1 n/a 31/07/19 Satisfactory

Boothstown Methodist Primary (bf) Q1 n/a 04/07/19 Satisfactory

St Andrews Eccles CE Primary School Q1 n/a 25/07/19 Satisfactory

Grosvenor Road Primary School Q3 n/a 22/07/19 High

Ellenbrook Primary School Q1 n/a 07/11/19 Satisfactory

Summerville Primary School (bf) Q3 n/a 21/101/9 Satisfactory  

Moorfield Primary School (bf) Q3/Q4 n/a 02/12/19 Limited

James Brindley Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a 13/11/19 High

P
age 73



Audit Plan 2019/20 – Progress     Appendix 1

9

Audit / Activity Timing TOR   Reported Assurance Comments

St Thomas of Canterbury Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a TBC TBC Draft report

St George’s CE Primary School Q4 n/a Planning

North Walkden Primary School Q4 n/a Planning

Willow Tree Primary School Q4 n/a Planning

St Sebastian’s RC Primary School Q4 n/a Planning

St Andrews Boothstown CE Primary School Q4 n/a

St Ambrose Barlow RC High School Q4 n/a

St Paul’s (Crompton St) Primary School Q4 n/a

Wharton Primary School Q4 n/a

Peel Hall Primary School Q4 n/a

 * Indicative level of assurance, based on the progress made since the original audit review

P
age 74



Levels of Assurance  Appendix 2
          

10

Appendix 2: Levels of Assurance

DESIGN of the internal control framework EFFECTIVENESS of the control frameworkLevel of 
Assurance

Audit findings Opinion Audit findings Opinion

High Appropriate procedures and 
controls are in place to 
mitigate the key risks.

There is a sound system of 
internal control designed to 
achieve objectives.

No or only minor exception 
found in testing of 
procedures and controls.

The controls that are in place are 
being consistently applied.

Satisfactory In the main, there are 
appropriate procedures and 
controls in place to mitigate 
the key risks reviewed, 
albeit with some that are not 
fully effective.

There is generally a sound 
system of internal control 
designed to achieve 
objectives, but with few 
exceptions.

A small number of 
exceptions found in the 
testing of procedures and 
controls.

There is evidence of non-
compliance with some controls, 
which may put achievement of 
some of operational objectives at 
risk.

Limited A number of significant 
gaps identified in the 
procedures and controls in 
key areas.

The system of internal 
controls is weakened by 
some significant gaps.

A number of reoccurring 
exceptions found in testing 
of the procedures and 
controls.

There is poor compliance with 
controls and procedures which 
may put operational objectives at 
risk of not being fully achieved.

Minimal For all risk areas there are 
significant gaps in the 
procedure and control. This 
will affect the effectiveness 
of organisation’s overall 
control framework.

Overall, there is a poor 
system of internal control in 
place. 

Due to the absence of 
effective controls and 
procedures, no reliance can 
be placed on their 
effectiveness.

There is a substantial non-
compliance with controls and 
procedures or compliance with 
inadequate controls and 
procedures, which will likely put 
the council’s objectives at 
significant risk of not being 
achieved.

P
age 75



Priority of Actions  
Appendix 3

                                     

11

Appendix 3: Priority of Actions

Priority Rationale

Critical Critical issue that could have a significant impact on a key system, function, or process objectives, and also the council's 
objectives.

High Control weakness that could have a serious impact on a key system, function, or process objectives.

Medium Control weakness that could have an impact on the achievement of a key system, function or process objectives or an 
issue, which, if addressed, would contribute towards raising the standard of internal control.

Low Minor control weakness that does not have an impact upon the achievement of a key system, function or process 
objectives. Implementation of the recommendation would strengthen the control framework and/or improve compliance 
with existing controls.

 

P
age 76



Document is Restricted

Page 77

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report Internal Audit 
Investigations Progress Report

Committee Audit and Accounts Committee
Date All regular meetings

Category of exemption applied: 
1 Information relating to any individual
2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of any individual
7 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 

prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in 
public debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the 
personal probity (or otherwise) of elected members or 
council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for 
money for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to 
understand decisions made by the Council that have 
affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical 
decision-making or examples of malpractice?

Yes

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

Yes

Page 85



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION

Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without 
giving the public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view 
of a situation?

Yes

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without 
giving the public useful information? 

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or 
individuals at risk? 

Yes

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general 
would benefit more from information being withheld? 

Yes

Justification of decision
(Please provide explicit reasoning)

The report summarises complete and ongoing investigation into employees. 
Whilst specific names are not used, inferences may be gained from areas of the 
business where the investigation is taking place that could compromise the integrity 
of investigations if disclosed, potentially lead to the identification of individuals 
including whistleblowers (personal information), or highlight weaknesses in the 
councils control environment that could be exploited (damaging to business 
interests).
The report likely includes details of allegations made, unsubstantiated at this point in 
time, which could cause undue concern if disclosed.
The council has a legal duty under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 to protect 
whistleblowers. Public disclosure of this report could compromise that duty.
An annual summary report, and interim report, are issued under Part 1 that should 
address any public interest needs regarding the council’s work on counter fraud and 
provides data on internal investigations. 

Other documents attached? No

Name and Title: David Smith

Date: January 2020

Page 86


	Agenda
	8 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	10b An Update on the Strategic Risk Register 2019/20 - Emma Reid
	10c The Annual Audit Letter 2019/20 - Mazars
	10d External Audit Update - Mazars
	10f Counter Fraud Bribery and Corruption Update - Simon Bleckly
	10g Urban Vision Transition - Shoaib Mohammad
	11 Internal Audit Progress Report
	13 Internal Audit Investigations Progress Report (April 2019 to January 2020)
	Public Interest Test Checklist 12A - Internal Audit Investigations Progress Report


